
Wednesday, February 15, 2023
1:30 PM

Napa Valley Transportation Authority
625 Burnell Street

Napa, CA 94559

REFER TO COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE

NVTA Board of Directors

******************************************COVID-19 SPECIAL NOTICE*****************************************

           PUBLIC MEETING GUIDELINES FOR PARTICIPATING VIA PHONE/VIDEO CONFERENCING

Consistent with California Assembly Bill 361 and Government Code Section 54953, due to the 

COVID-19 State of Emergency and the recommendations for physical distancing, the Napa Valley 

Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board meeting will be held remotely via Zoom and in person at the 

JoAnn Busenbark Boardroom located at 625 Burnell Street, Napa, Ca 94559. Members of the public 

may observe and participate in the meeting from home or in person. The public is invited to participate 

telephonically or electronically via the methods below:

1) To join the meeting via Zoom video conference from your PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android: go to 

https://zoom.us/join and enter meeting ID 997 5007 2830

2) To join the Zoom meeting by phone: dial 1-669-900-6833, enter meeting ID: 997 5007 2830 If asked 

for the participant ID or code, press #.

3) Watch live on YouTube: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrpjLcW9uRmA0EE6w-eKZyw?

app=desktop

Public Comments:  Members of the public may comment on matters within the subject matter of the 

Board’s jurisdiction that are not on the meeting agenda during the general public comment item at the 

beginning of the meeting.  Comments related to a specific item on the agenda must be reserved until the 

time the agenda item is considered and the Chair invites public comment. (Members of the public are 

welcome to address the Board, however, under the Brown Act Board members may not deliberate or 

take action on items not on the agenda, and generally may only listen.)

Instructions for submitting a Public Comment are on the next page.

Agenda - Final

**Meeting will be held both in person at 625 Burnell 
Street, Napa and remotely via Zoom**



Members of the public may submit a public comment in writing by emailing info@nvta .ca.gov by 10:00 

a.m. on the day of the meeting with PUBLIC COMMENT as the subject line (for comments related to an 

agenda item, please include the item number). All written comments should be 350 words or less, which 

corresponds to approximately 3 minutes or less of speaking time. Public comments emailed to 

info@nvta.ca.gov after 10 a.m. the day of the meeting will be entered into the record but not read out 

loud.  If authors of the written correspondence would like to speak, they are free to do so and should

raise their hand and the Chair will call upon them at the appropriate time.

1. To comment during a virtual meeting (Zoom), click the “Raise Your Hand” button (click on the 

“Participants” tab) to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the Agenda item.  You 

must unmute yourself when it is your turn to make your comment for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted 

time, you will then be re-muted.  Instructions for how to “Raise Your Hand” are available at 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/205566129-Raise-Hand-In-Webinar.

2. To comment by phone, press “*9” to request to speak when Public Comment is being taken on the 

Agenda item.  You must unmute yourself by pressing “*6” when it is your turn to make your comment, 

for up to 3 minutes.  After the allotted time, you will be re-muted.

Instructions on how to join a Zoom video conference meeting are available at : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362193-Joining-a-Meeting

Instructions on how to join a Zoom video conference meeting by phone are available at : 

https://support.zoom.us/hc/en-us/articles/201362663-Joining-a-meeting-by-phone

Note: The methods of observing, listening, or providing public comment to the meeting may be altered 

due to technical difficulties or the meeting may be cancelled, if needed.   

All materials relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the NVTA -TA are 

posted on the NVTA website 72 hours prior to the meeting at: https://nctpa.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx  

or by emailing info@nvta.ca.gov to request a copy of the agenda. 

Materials distributed to the members of the Committee present at the meeting will be available for public 

inspection after the meeting. Availability of materials related to agenda items for public inspection does 

not include materials which are exempt from public disclosure under Government Code sections 6253.5, 

6254, 6254.3, 6254.7, 6254.15, 6254.16, or 6254.22.

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): This Agenda shall be made available upon request in alternate 

formats to persons with a disability.  Persons requesting a disability -related modification or 

accommodation should contact Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary, at (707) 259-8633 during 

regular business hours, at least 48 hours prior to the time of the meeting.

Note: Where times are indicated for agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only, and may be shorter or longer as needed.

Acceso y el Titulo VI: La NVTA puede proveer asistencia/facilitar la comunicación a las personas 

discapacitadas y los individuos con conocimiento limitado del ingl és quienes quieran dirigirse a la 

Autoridad.  Para solicitar asistencia, por favor llame al número (707) 259-8633.  Requerimos que solicite 

asistencia con tres días hábiles de anticipación para poderle proveer asistencia.

Ang Accessibility at Title VI: Ang NVTA ay nagkakaloob ng mga serbisyo/akomodasyon kung hilingin 

ang mga ito, ng mga taong may kapansanan at mga indibiduwal na may limitadong kaalaman sa wikang 

Ingles, na nais na matugunan ang mga bagay-bagay na may kinalaman sa NVTA-TA.  Para sa mga 

tulong sa akomodasyon o pagsasalin-wika, mangyari lang tumawag sa (707) 259-8633.  Kakailanganin 

namin ng paunang abiso na tatlong araw na may pasok sa trabaho para matugunan ang inyong 

kahilingan.



February 15, 2023NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call

4. Adoption of the Agenda

5. Public Comment

6. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation Commissioner's,

and Association of Bay Area Governments Update

7. Executive Director's Update

8. Caltrans' Update

Note: Where times are indicated for the agenda items, they are approximate and intended as estimates 

only and may be shorter or longer as needed.

9. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

9.1 AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings (Osman Mufti) 
(Pages 8-13)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution 23-03 making findings and declaring it intent to continue remote 

teleconference meetings in accordance with Government Code section 

54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 State of Emergency 

Proclamation. 

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.2 Meeting Minutes of January 18, 2023 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 

14-17)

Board action will approve the minutes of January 18, 2023 regular meeting.Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Draft MinutesAttachments:

Page 3 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/8/2023

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=56add3b8-7016-4845-8dca-12e8af590b91.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=90ba77eb-668f-44bc-91e5-31647087d017.pdf


February 15, 2023NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

9.3 California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Federal 

Transit Administration (FTA) Sections 5311 and 5311(f) Program 

(Antonio Onorato) (Pages 18-22)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve 

Resolution 23-04 authorizing the Executive Director, or designee, to 

execute actions necessary to obtain grant funds authorized under Sections 

5311 and 5311(f) provided by California State Department of 

Transportation (Caltrans) for rural and intercity services.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.4 Resolution 23-05 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 
2024 (Diana Meehan) (Pages 23-30)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 

No. 23-05 adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2024 Transportation Fund for 

Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure 

Plan.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

9.5 Purchase Order 23-P3003 with Platinum Chevrolet to Acquire a 

new Utility Truck (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 31-43)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the 

Executive Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications 

to Purchase Order 23-P3003 for a Transit Maintenance Utility Vehicle in an 

amount not to exceed $63,000 and to contract with a third party for the 

upfitting for an additional amount not to exceed $37,000.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

Page 4 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/8/2023

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0606007-bfe7-4b00-afd9-f1b9011d1982.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b0c07aab-28d4-46ed-a2cc-fedb2900765c.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=567b07dc-a0a7-4fc6-8890-271c36eabdad.pdf


February 15, 2023NVTA Board of Directors Agenda - Final

9.6 Updates to Vine Transit Policies (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 44-91)

That the NVTA Board approve the revisions to the NVTA Policies, 

Practices, and Procedures Manual: Transit Policies.

Recommendation:

1:45 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS

10.1 Vine Transit Update (Rebecca Schenck) (Pages 92-98)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

second quarter FY 2022-23 Vine Transit update.

Recommendation:

2:00 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

10.2 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 99-109)

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the 

Federal Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors 

and the State Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors.

Recommendation:

2:15 p.m.Estimated Time:

Staff ReportAttachments:

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

12. ADJOURNMENT

12.1  The next Regular Meeting is Wednesday, March 15, 2023 at 1:30pm.

I hereby certify that the agenda for the above stated meeting was posted at a location freely

accessible to members of the public at the NVTA Offices, 625 Burnell Street, Napa, CA by

5:00 p.m. by Friday, February 10, 2023.

____________________________________

Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary

Page 5 Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 2/8/2023

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6527c26f-2461-49b6-9a0d-2c455b39e17f.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9750a47b-ac47-4488-94e3-225825630d3c.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5f791998-e9b4-4d1b-9c00-442781317ea1.pdf


Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

AB 32 Global Warming Solutions Act 
ABAG Association of Bay Area Governments 

ACFR Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 

ADA American with Disabilities Act 

APA American Planning Association 

ATAC Active Transportation Advisory Committee 
ATP Active Transportation Program 
BAAQMD Bay Area Air Quality Management District 

BAB  Build America Bureau 

BART Bay Area Rapid Transit District 

BATA Bay Area Toll Authority 

BIL Bipartisan Infrastructure Law (IIJA) 

BRT Bus Rapid Transit 

CAC Citizen Advisory Committee 
CAP Climate Action Plan  
CAPTI Climate Action Plan for Transportation 

Infrastructure  
Caltrans California Department of Transportation 

CASA Committee to House the Bay Area 

CBTP Community Based Transportation Plan 

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act 

CIP Capital Investment Program 

CMA Congestion Management Agency 

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program 

CMP Congestion Management Program 

CalSTA California State Transportation Agency 

CTA California Transit Association 
CTP Countywide Transportation Plan  
CTC California Transportation Commission 

CY Calendar Year 

DAA Design Alternative Analyst 

DBB Design-Bid-Build 

DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 

DBF Design-Build-Finance 

DBFOM Design-Build-Finance-Operate-Maintain 

DED Draft Environmental Document  

EIR Environmental Impact Report 

EJ Environmental Justice 

EPC Equity Priority Communities  

ETID Electronic Transit Information Displays 

FAS Federal Aid Secondary  
FAST Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA Federal Highway Administration 

FTA Federal Transit Administration 

FY Fiscal Year 

GHG Greenhouse Gas 

GGRF Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund 
GTFS General Transit Feed Specification 

HBP Highway Bridge Program  

HBRR Highway Bridge Replacement and 
Rehabilitation Program  

HIP Housing Incentive Program 

HOT High Occupancy Toll 

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle 

HR3 High Risk Rural Roads  
HSIP Highway Safety Improvement Program  
HTF  Highway Trust Fund  
HUTA Highway Users Tax Account 

HVIP  Hybrid & Zero-Emission Truck and Bus 
Voucher Incentive Program 

IFB Invitation for Bid 

ITIP State Interregional Transportation 
Improvement Program 

ITOC Independent Taxpayer Oversight Committee 

IS/MND Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 
JARC Job Access and Reverse Commute  
LCTOP Low Carbon Transit Operations Program 

LIFT Low-Income Flexible Transportation 

LOS Level of Service 

LS&R Local Streets & Roads 

LTF  Local Transportation Fund  

MaaS Mobility as a Service 

MAP 21 Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 
Century Act 

MPO Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MTC Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

MTS Metropolitan Transportation System 

ND Negative Declaration   

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act 

NOAH Natural Occurring Affordable Housing  
NOC Notice of Completion 

NOD Notice of Determination 



Glossary of Acronyms 

Latest Revision: 01/22 

NOP Notice of Preparation 

NVTA Napa Valley Transportation Authority 

NVTA-TA Napa Valley Transportation Authority-Tax 
Agency 

OBAG One Bay Area Grant  

PA&ED Project Approval Environmental Document 

P3 or PPP Public-Private Partnership 

PCC Paratransit Coordination Council 
PCI Pavement Condition Index 

PCA Priority Conservation Area 

PDA Priority Development Areas 

PID Project Initiation Document  
PIR Project Initiation Report 

PMS Pavement Management System  
Prop. 42 Statewide Initiative that requires a portion of 

gasoline sales tax revenues be designated to 
transportation purposes 

PSE Plans, Specifications and Estimates 

PSR Project Study Report 

PTA Public Transportation Account  

RACC Regional Agency Coordinating Committee 

RAISE Rebuilding American Infrastructure with 
Sustainability and Equity 

RFP Request for Proposal 

RFQ Request for Qualifications 

RHNA Regional Housing Needs Allocation  
RM 2 Regional Measure 2 Bridge Toll 

RM 3 Regional Measure 3 Bridge Toll 

RMRP Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation 
Program 

ROW (R/W) Right of Way  

RTEP Regional Transit Expansion Program 

RTIP Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program 

RTP Regional Transportation Plan 

SAFE Service Authority for Freeways and 
Expressways 

SAFETEA-LU Safe, Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient 
Transportation Equity Act-A Legacy for Users 

SB 375 Sustainable Communities and Climate 
Protection Act 2008 

SB 1 The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017 

SCS Sustainable Community Strategy 

SHA State Highway Account 

SHOPP State Highway Operation and Protection 
Program  

SNTDM Solano Napa Travel Demand Model  

SR State Route 

SRTS Safe Routes to School 

SOV Single-Occupant Vehicle 

STA State Transit Assistance 

STIC Small Transit Intensive Cities 

STIP State Transportation Improvement Program 

STP Surface Transportation Program 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 
TCM Transportation Control Measure 

TCRP Traffic Congestion Relief Program 

TDA Transportation Development Act 

TDM Transportation Demand Management 
 Transportation Demand Model 

TE Transportation Enhancement  

TEA Transportation Enhancement Activities 

TEA 21 Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century 

TFCA Transportation Fund for Clean Air 

TIP Transportation Improvement Program 

TIFIA Transportation Infrastructure Finance and 
Innovation Act  

TIRCP Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program 

TLC Transportation for Livable Communities 

TLU Transportation and Land Use 

TMP Traffic Management Plan 

TMS Transportation Management System 

TNC Transportation Network Companies 

TOAH Transit Oriented Affordable Housing  
TOC Transit Oriented Communities 

TOD Transit-Oriented Development 

TOS Transportation Operations Systems 

TPA Transit Priority Area  
TPI Transit Performance Initiative 

TPP Transit Priority Project Areas 

VHD Vehicle Hours of Delay 

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled 



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1 

Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 23-03 
making findings and declaring its intent to continue remote teleconference meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 
State of Emergency Proclamation.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

AB 361 allows local legislative bodies to hold remote meetings during a proclaimed state 
of emergency, if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures that 
warrant holding meetings remotely.   

In response to improving conditions, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-04-22 
on February 25, 2022, which lifted many of the provisions related to the emergency while 
maintaining certain measures to support the ongoing response and recovery effort. 

NVTA staff is monitoring the status of the Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, 
state and local orders related to social distancing, and health and safety conditions related 
to COVID-19, and confirm that said conditions continue to exist that warrant “hybrid” 
meetings to allow members of the Board and public to attend either in person or remotely. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

8



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 
FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Laura Sanderlin, Office Manager/Board Secretary 

(707) 259-8633 / Email: lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution 23-03 
making findings and declaring its intent to continue remote teleconference meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) due to the Governor’s COVID-19 
State of Emergency Proclamation.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
AB 361 allows local legislative bodies to hold remote meetings during a proclaimed state 
of emergency, if state or local officials have imposed or recommended measures that 
warrant holding meetings remotely.   
 
If the Board desires to continue to meet utilizing the relaxed teleconference meeting rules, 
AB 361 requires an ongoing finding every 30 days that the Board has reconsider the 
circumstances of the state of emergency and that the emergency continues to impact the 
ability to “meet safely in person,” or that state or local officials continue to recommend 
measures to promote social distancing.   Gov. Code § 54953(e)(3). 
 
On September 27, 2021, the Napa County Executive Officer and Public Health Officer 
issued a recommendation that all public boards and commissions that wish to continue 
meeting remotely to help minimize the spread and transmission of COVID-19 be 
permitted to do so.  This Local Order remains effective through June 30, 2022.   
 
In response to improving conditions, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-04-22 
on February 25, 2022, which lifted many of the provisions related to the emergency while 

9

mailto:lsanderlin@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 9.1 
February 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
maintaining certain measures to support the ongoing response and recovery effort.  
Although a portion of the emergency provisions have been lifted the Governor’s March 4. 
2020 State of Emergency Proclamation as it related to the COVID-19 pandemic remains 
active. 
 
NVTA staff is monitoring the status of the Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, 
state and local orders related to social distancing, and health and safety conditions related 
to COVID-19, and confirm that said conditions continue to exist that warrant “hybrid” 
meetings to allow members of the Board and public to attend either in person or remotely. 
COVID cases are decreasing, and regulations are relaxing; however, there remains local 
and state recommendations for social distancing and remote meeting attendance and all 
are encouraged to isolate when not feeling well.   Hybrid meetings allow for these 
precautions to be implemented.   
 
Hybrid meetings are one of the least disruptive methods the Board can utilize to protect 
against the ongoing threat of COVID-19 transmission. COVID-19 spreads easily and 
quickly through airborne droplets. While face coverings, testing, and ventilating indoor 
spaces can reduce transmission, they cannot eliminate the threat. Conducting hybrid 
meetings allows attendees to fully participate in each meeting without requiring that they 
gather in the same indoor space. Further, it allows members of the public, staff, and 
members of the Board to participate in meetings even if they have been exposed to 
COVID-19 or are experiencing symptoms of COVID-19. 
 
Staff recommends the Board extend the time during which it may continue to meet by 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953 
of the Brown Act. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to approve Resolution 23-01 which would put the NVTA 
Board of Director’s meeting out of government compliance.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 

1) Resolution 23-03 

10



ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 9.1 

FEBRUARY 15, 2023 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION No. 23-03 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 
MAKING FINDINGS REAUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS 
AND DECLARING ITS INTENT TO CONTINUE MEETING IN HYBRID FORMAT TO 

ALLOW ATTENDANCE IN PERSON OR REMOTELY PURSUANT TO 
GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 54953  

 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is committed to 
preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board;  
 

WHEREAS, all legislative body meetings of NVTA are open and public, as required by 
the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the 
public may attend, participate, and observe the Commission conduct its business; and 
 

WHEREAS, Governor Newsom signed AB 361, amending the Brown Act, including 
Government Code section 54953(e), which makes provisions for remote teleconferencing 
participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain 
conditions; and 
 

WHEREAS, a required condition of AB 361 is that a state of emergency is declared by 
the Governor pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of 
conditions of disaster or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the 
state caused by conditions as described in Government Code section 8558; and  
 

WHEREAS, such conditions now exist in the State, specifically, the Governor of the 
State of California proclaimed a state of emergency on March 4, 2020, related to the 
threat of COVID-19, which remains partially in effect ; and 
 

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2021, the Napa County Executive Officer and Public 
Health Officer jointly recommended social distancing measures and that all boards and 
commissions continue meeting remotely, in whole or in part, in order to help minimize the 
spread and transmission of COVID-19 and its variants, and this local order remains 
effective through June 30, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, the hybrid meeting model allows each individual attendee of the meeting 
to assess his or her own risk, and the risk they may pose to others, based on vaccination 
status, health conditions, age, or any other factor which may dissuade a person from 
attending an in-person meeting; and  

 

 

11



 
Resolution No. 23-03 

Page 2 of 3 
 

WHEREAS, the hybrid meeting model also provides those that wish to attend meetings 
in-person the ability to do so; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that emergency conditions 

continue to persist within the County of Napa due to the COVID-19 emergency, the state 
of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in 
person, and the Governor’s state of emergency proclamation, state regulations and local 
recommendations related to social distancing and remote meetings continue.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE NAPA VALLEY 
TRANSPORTATION BOARD DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE AND ORDER 
AS FOLLOWS:    
 

1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 
 

 2. The Board hereby finds that it has considered the state of the emergency and that 
meeting in person for meetings of all NVTA related legislative bodies subject to the Ralph 
M. Brown Act would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees.   

 
3.  Holding hybrid meetings will reduce the possibility of COVID-19 transmission during 

meetings by allowing those who are at risk or potentially suffering COVID-19 symptoms 
to participate in meetings without physically attending. 
 

4. Staff is hereby directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and 
purpose of this Resolution including, conducting open and public meetings of the Board 
and all NVTA legislative bodies in accordance with Government Code section 54953, 
subdivision (e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act for hybrid meetings. 
 

5.  NVTA shall hold their meetings in hybrid format offering attendees both in-person 
and videoconference/teleconference access. Any public comment period during any such 
meeting shall be taken in the same form and fashion from in-person and remote 
attendees. If at any time during any such meeting the ability to broadcast the meeting and 
accept public comments from remote attendees through videoconference/teleconference 
is disrupted, the body holding the meeting shall recess until the disruption is resolved or 
continue the meeting to a later date when videoconference/teleconference participation 
can be restored. 

 
6. Staff is further directed to continue to monitor the health and safety conditions related 

to COVID-19, the status of the Governor’s state of emergency, the state regulations 
related to social distancing, and the local orders related to health and safety, and present 
to the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting the related information and 
recommendations for hybrid meetings pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 
Government Code section 54953, subdivision (e)(3), and to consider extending the time 
during which the Commission may continue to meet by teleconference without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

12



Resolution No. 23-03 
Page 3 of 3 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED by 
the Board of Directors of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority, at a regular meeting 
held on February 15, 2023, by the following vote: 

_______________________ 
Liz Alessio, NVTA Chair  Ayes: 

      Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

13



Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2023 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

Meeting Minutes 
NVTA Board of Directors 

Wednesday, January 18, 2023 1:30 PM 

1. Call to Order

Chair Alessio called the meeting to order at 1:44pm. 

2. Roll Call
Leon Garcia 
Alfredo Pedroza 
Paul Dohring 
Mark Joseph 
Liz Alessio 
Scott Sedgley 
Eric Knight 
Anna Chouteau 
Eric Hall 
Ryan Gregory 
Absent: 
Margie Mohler 
Donald Williams 
Kevin Eisenberg 

3. Adoption of the Agenda

Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GREGORY to APPROVE Item 3 Adoption of the 
Agenda. Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 

Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Knight, Chouteau, Hall, and Gregory 

Absent: 3 -  Mohler, Williams, and Eisenberg 

4. Public Comment

Public comment made by Robert Reber, Napa County Bicycle Coalition regarding changes to 
Assembly Bills 1909 and 2147 and the safety impacts for pedestrians and cyclists. 

5. Chairperson’s, Board Members’, Metropolitan Transportation
Commissioner's,
and Association of Bay Area Governments Update
 

Director Pedroza reported on recent MTC activities. 
No ABAG report was provided. 

6. Executive Director's Update

Executive Director Miller reported: 

14



 

 Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2023 

 -Acknowledgement of new Board Members 
 -Transportation Research Board Annual Conference review 
 -Regional Network Management webinar review 
 -NVTA staffing updates 
 -New Ride the Vine app debuts on January 29 
 -Acorn planting on January 16 recap 
 -All About NVTA Workshop for newly elected officials on February 27 
 
7.  Caltrans' Update 
  
 Caltrans update provided by Daniel Chang. 
 
8.  PRESENTATIONS 
 
 
8.1 Project Update (Grant Bailey)   
 Information Only/No Action 
 
 Director Gregory inquired about phasing of the Soscol Junction Project. 
 
 Director Garcia commented on Green Island Rd North as alternative to Hwy 29 access. 
 
 Director Pedroza commented on American Canyon traffic and how it impacts the entireregion. 
 
8.2 Update on the Regional Network Management Approach (Kate Miller)   
 Information Only/No Action  
 
 Staff, Danielle Schmitz presented. 
 
9.  CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
  
 Motion MOVED by PEDROZA, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Consent Items 9.1-9.4. 
Motion carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Knight, Chouteau, Hall, and Gregory   
 Absent: 3 -  Mohler, Williams, and Eisenberg  
 
9.1 AB 361 Requirements for Remote Public Meetings (Osman Mufti) (Pages 10-15)   
 Attachments: Staff Report 
 
 
9.2 Meeting Minutes of December 21, 2022 (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages 16-18)   
 Attachments: Draft Minutes 
  
 
9.3 Citizens Advisory Committee (CAC) Member Appointments (Laura Sanderlin) (Pages  
 19-28) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
 
 
9.4 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Fiscal Years (FY) 2022-2025 Disadvantage  
 Business Enterprise (DBE) Triennial Goal and Policy (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 29-68) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 

15

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8bf09292%1eec96%1e4850%1e94b6%1ee70a2c1b2876.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ce49d730%1eaa55%1e491c%1e9188%1eaab2ee00c2e0.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d1f4c730%1e2203%1e4f9b%1ea5b6%1e6e0d21718f4d.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cb26ad0b%1e21ff%1e4ad4%1e87f6%1e8c02bc806215.pdf


 

 Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2023 

  
10.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
10.1 Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Annual Financial Statement with  
 Independent Auditor's Report for the Years Ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 and Single  
 Audit Report of Uniform Guidance (Antonio Onorato) (Pages 69-168) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
  
 Motion MOVED by GREGORY, SECONDED by CHOUTEAU to APPROVE Item 10.1. Motion carried  
 by the following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Knight, Chouteau, Hall, and Gregory 
 
 
 Absent: 3 -  Mohler, Williams, and Eisenberg 
 
 
10.2 Termination Fee Exposure in the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) between the 
Seller (127Energy LLC) and the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) (Kate Miller)  
(Pages 169-172) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
  
 Director Joseph commented on the unlikely risk of uninsured airplane crash scenario. 
 
 Director Garcia inquired about clarity of what is considered a total loss to the facility. 
 
 Motion MOVED by JOSEPH, SECONDED by GREGORY to APPROVE Item 10.2. Motion moved by  
 the following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Knight, Chouteau, Hall, and Gregory 
 
 
 Absent: 3 -  Mohler, Williams, and Eisenberg 
 
 
10.3 Amending Contract with Kleinfelder for Construction Services (Grant Bailey) (Pages  
 173-180) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
  
 Motion MOVED by CHOUTEAU, SECONDED by PEDROZA to APPROVE Agenda Item 10.3. Motion  
 carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Knight, Chouteau, Hall, and Gregory 
 
 
 Absent: 3 -  Mohler, Williams, and Eisenberg 
  
 
10.4 Amendment Contract with Sequoia Ecological Consulting Inc. for Biological Monitoring  
 and Archeological Services for the Napa Valley Vine Trail - St Helena to Calistoga  
 Project (Grant Bailey) (Pages 181-186) 
 
 Attachments: Staff Report 
  
 Motion MOVED by PEDROZA, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Agenda Item 10.4. Motion  
 carried by the following roll call vote: 
 
 Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Knight, Chouteau, Hall, and Gregory 
 
 
 Absent: 3 -  Mohler, Williams, and Eisenberg 
 
 

16

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3aa14c2e%1e725d%1e456d%1ea3e0%1e0f3551269f99.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4575f590%1ee710%1e42ff%1eae3d%1ec05dcb5f29da.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=78916e25%1e38a7%1e4b4d%1eaeed%1e0065937dd9fa.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=339b2c52%1e5199%1e4e8d%1eb957%1e5eeef74435cf.pdf


Page 1 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority Printed on 1/26/2023 

10.5 Appointment of Two NVTA Board Members and One Alternate NVTA Board Member to 
Participate on the County Wide Vision Zero Stakeholder Working Group (Diana 

Meehan)  
(Pages 187-190) 

Attachments: Staff Report 

Vice Chair Joseph and Director Chouteau expressed interest in participating as Stakeholder. 
Chair Alessio volunteered to serve as Alternate. 

Motion MOVED by PEDROZA, SECONDED by GARCIA to APPROVE Joseph and Chouteau  
appointed to serve on the Ad Hoc committee and Alessio as alternate. Motion carried by the 
following roll call vote: 

Aye: 21 -  Garcia, Pedroza, Dohring, Joseph, Alessio, Sedgley, Knight, Chouteau, Hall, and Gregory 

Absent: 3 -  Mohler, Williams, and Eisenberg 

10.6 Federal and State Legislative Update (Kate Miller) (Pages 191-201)  
Attachments: Staff Report 

Information Only/No Action 

{Director Sedgley departed meeting} 

11. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

None 

12. ADJOURNMENT

Chair Alessio adjourned the meeting at 3:37pm. 

12.1  The next Regular Meeting is February 15, 2023 and Adjournment. 

____________________________________ 
Laura M. Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

17

http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ab275e0d%1e54ad%1e498a%1ea075%1e27ec7f69efa6.pdf
http://nctpa.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=45ca4d9f%1e01b3%1e429d%1e8e2a%1e8fc6dd7ac280.pdf


February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
Sections 5311 and 5311(f) Program  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 23-
04 (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive Director, or designee, to execute actions 
necessary to obtain grant funds authorized under Sections 5311 and 5311(f) administered 
by California State Department of Transportation (Caltrans) for rural and intercity 
services. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Every three (3) years, Caltrans requires a new resolution as a condition for receiving 5311 
and 5311(f) funds. The last resolution was adopted in 2020.  A new resolution must be 
adopted by the Board to continue funding the NVTA rural transit program which includes 
the Yountville Trolley, St. Helena Shuttle, and Calistoga Shuttle and the Route 21 to 
Solano County intercity bus program. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact? Yes.  Future funding is dependent on an adopted resolution. 
 

18



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Antonio Onorato, Director - Administration, Finance and Policy 

(707) 259-8779 / Email: aonorato@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) Sections 5311 and 5311(f) Program  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 23-
04 (Attachment 1) authorizing the Executive Director, or designee, to execute actions 
necessary to obtain grant funds authorized under Sections 5311 and 5311(f) administered 
by California State Department of Transportation (Caltrans) for rural and intercity 
services. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5311 program is authorized by 49 
United Sates Code (U.S.C.) Section 5311.  It provides funding for public transit in non-
urbanized areas defined as a population of less than 50,000 as determined by the Federal 
Census.  The FTA apportions funds annually to each state.  For California, the Governor 
has designated Caltrans Division of Mass Transportation to administer these funds.  
 
The attached resolution authorizes the Executive Director and/or her designee to take 
actions necessary to secure such funding, including amending the Federal Transportation 
Improvement Program (FTIP) and executing, approving and submitting documents or 
information to the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) or other agencies as 
necessary.  
 

19

mailto:aonorato@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 9.3 
February 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
____________________________________________________________________________________  
 
Caltrans is the designated recipient of FTA 5311 funds.  NVTA is required to provide a 
local match of 44.67% for the rural transit and intercity bus program.  Transportation 
Development Act (TDA) Article 8 funding will be used to match the FTA 5311 funds.   
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
NVTA may elect to forego this continued funding source or seek other funds.  However, 
without this funding source, other fund sources would need to be diverted that could be 
used for other projects and would hinder efforts to deploy critical transit services. 
 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 3: Use taxpayer dollars efficiently. 
 
Section 5311(f) funding supplements the budget for the non-urbanized areas of Napa 
County and Intercity Bus Route to Solano.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 (1) Resolution 23-04 

20



 
 

RESOLUTION No. 23-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

AUTHORIZING FEDERAL FUNDING UNDER 
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) SECTION 5311 

(49 U.S.C. SECTION 5311) AND  
FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION (FTA) SECTION 5311(f) 

(49 U.S.C. SECTION 5311(f)) 
WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
WHEREAS, the U. S. Department of Transportation is authorized to make grants 

to states through the Federal Transit Administration to support operating assistance 
projects for non-urbanized public transportation systems under Section 5311 and 5311(f) 
of the Federal Transit Act (FTA C 9040.1G and FTA C 9050.1); and 
 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation (Department) has been 
designated by the Governor of the State of California to administer Section 5311 grants 
for transportation projects for the general public for the rural transit and intercity bus; and 

 
WHEREAS, NVTA desires has made application for financial assistance for transit 

service/purchase of capital equipment in Napa County; and 
 

WHEREAS, NVTA has, to the maximum extent feasible, coordinated with other 
transportation providers and users in the region (including social service agencies); 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority does hereby authorize the Executive 
Director or designee, to file and execute applications with the Department for capital 
projects and operating assistance pursuant to Section 5311 and 5311(f) of the Federal 
Transit Act (FTA C 9040.1F and FTA C 9050.1), as amended. 
 
That the Executive Director or designee is authorized to execute and file all certification 
of assurances, contracts or agreements or any other document required by the 
Department. 
 
That the Executive Director or designee is authorized to provide additional information as 
the Department may require in connection with the application for the Section 5311 and 
5311(f) projects. 
 
That the Executive Director or designee is authorized to submit and approve request for 
reimbursement of funds from the Department for the Section 5311 and 5311(f) project(s). 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.3 

February 15, 2023 

21



Resolution No. 23-04 
Page 2 of 2 

Passed and Adopted the 15th day of February 2023. 

______________________ 
Liz Alessio, NVTA Chair   Ayes: 

Nays: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: 

____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 

APPROVED: 

_______________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA Legal Counsel 

22



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 

SUBJECT 

Resolution No. 23-05 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program 
Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2024 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 23-
05 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2024 Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A). 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

NVTA annually allocates TFCA funds which are generated from a four-dollar vehicle 
license fee authorized under Assembly Bill 434 (AB 434) administered by the Bay Area 
Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). Of the total revenues generated in Napa 
County, 40% are returned to NVTA for distribution to local projects.  Projects must be 
beneficial to air quality and meet the BAAQMD’s cost effectiveness criteria.  The 
remaining 60% is allocated by the BAAQMD on a competitive basis.  The Program 
Expenditure Plan for the Program Managers’ Funds is due March 1, 2023. 

The BAAQMD TFCA policies only allow funds to be retained for two (2) years unless 
NVTA originally requests additional time or the project(s) is making reasonable 
progress, in which case, a one (1) year extension is granted.  Bicycle Projects must be 
completed in 2 years and will not be granted a time extension beyond that limit. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$266,219 in TFCA Program Manager funds are available for program Administration 
and projects. 

23



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  APPROVE  

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Diana Meehan, Senior Planner 

(707) 259-8327 / Email: dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 23-05 Adopting the Transportation Fund for Clean Air 
(TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan for Fiscal Year End (FYE) 
2024  

______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 23-
05 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2024 Transportation Fund for 
Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A). 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
NVTA adopts a list of projects annually to be funded with TFCA Program Manager funds.  
NVTA receives roughly $190,000 each year in DMV revenues.  Six and one quarter 
percent (6.25%) of the revenues can be used for administration of the program.   
 
Beginning in 2018, NVTA staff recommended programming TFCA program manager 
funds over a three-year rolling period in order to use the funds more effectively, and to 
specifically address larger projects which need funding over a multi-year time horizon. 
Funds programmed in the first year of the three-year cycle have a firm commitment under 
the annually adopted expenditure plan. Funds in years two and three are flexible, based 
on project status and actual available revenues generated by the program.   
 
NVTA, as the program manager, reviews the program and trues up funding annually. A 
call for projects for FYE 2022 through FYE 2024 was issued in February 2021.  Two 
applications were received for FYE 2022 funds totaling $207,140 for projects and 

24

mailto:dmeehan@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority Agenda Item 9.4 
February 15, 2023 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
administration combined. A call for projects for FYE 2023 was opened in February 2022, 
and five applications were received totaling $205,117 and were programmed in October 
2022 by the Air District deadline of November 1, 2022.  Funds for program administration 
and projects for FYE 2024 total $266,219 and are shown in Table 1. 

Table 1:  Final Year-Three-year Cycle FYE 2024 TFCA Program Manager Funds 

FYE 2022-2024 TFCA 
Expenditures 

Program 
Amount 

Year 1 (2022) 

Program 
Amount 

Year 2 (2023) 

Program 
Amount 

Year 3 (2024) 
Administration Costs for FYE 
2022-24 $9,748 $11,733 $14,315 

Program Manager Funds* $198,216 $193,101 $251,904 

TOTAL $207,964 $244,966 $266,219 

*Includes interest and re-programmed funds from under budget projects

The Program Expenditure Plan for FYE 2024 Program Manager Funds is due to the Air 
District by March 1, 2023. Funds not programmed annually run the risk of being 
programmed by the Air District to other counties.  Staff is finalizing 2024 policy guidance 
for consistency with Air District guidance and will bring the updated guidance back to the 
board to open a call for projects for Fiscal Year 2024 in March. 

TFCA Basic Eligibility 

1. Reduction of emissions
2. TFCA cost-effectiveness
3. Eligible recipients (Public agencies or public agencies applying on behalf of non-

public entities)
4. Consistent with existing plans and programs
5. Environmental clearance

TFCA Project Eligibility 

1. Bicycle Facility Improvements
2. Arterial Management
3. Transit or Vanpool Incentive Programs
4. Shuttle/Vanpool Feeder Program
5. Clean Air Pilot or demonstration projects

25



Napa Valley Transportation Authority             Agenda Item 9.4 
February 15, 2023 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could choose not to approve the FYE 2024 Expenditure Plan, and program 
funds could be reallocated to projects in another county. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, income 
or ability. 
 
The TFCA Program Manager Funds provide an opportunity to fund sustainable 
transportation projects, such as bicycle and pedestrian projects, clean vehicles and 
vehicle charging infrastructure or shuttle projects to serve a wide variety of local 
transportation needs. 
 
Goal 5: Minimize the energy and other resources required to move people and goods 
 
The TFCA funded projects improve air quality and reduce traffic congestion by providing 
sustainable transportation options throughout the region. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 

(1) Resolution No. 23-05 

 
 
 

26



ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.4 

February 15, 2023 
 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION No. 23-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE 
NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (NVTA) 

ADOPTING THE TRANSPORTATION FUND FOR CLEAN AIR (TFCA) 
PROGRAM MANAGER EXPENDITURE PROGRAM FOR 

FISCAL YEAR END (FYE) 2024  
 
 

WHEREAS, the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) has imposed 
a vehicle license fee as allowed under Assembly Bill 434 to implement actions that will help 
reduce harmful auto emissions; and 
 

WHEREAS, that program is known as the Transportation Fund for Clean Air Program 
Manager funds; and 
 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 434 calls for the designation of an overall program 
manager to receive forty percent of the fees generated in the county to be expended for the 
improvement of air quality; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) has been designated 
the overall program manager for Napa County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the TFCA Program requires at least one public meeting each year for 

the purpose of adopting criteria for the expenditure of funds consistent with BAAQMD’s 
Adopted TFCA County Program Manager Fund Policies; and  

 
WHEREAS, the NVTA held a public meeting on February 15, 2023, to adopt the 

criteria for the expenditure of TFCA funds.  
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors that 
 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

 
2. Staff is directed to finalize and submit the FYE 2024 Expenditure Plan for Napa 

County, as shown in Exhibit A.  
 
 
 
 

27



 
Resolution No. 23-05 

Page 2 of 2 

3. The Executive Director or her designee is authorized to submit to or request all 
necessary information from other agencies on behalf of the NVTA, and to execute any other 
documents or certifications to gain and expend these funds.  
 
Passed and adopted this day of February 15, 2023. 
 
 
_______________________     Ayes 
Liz Alessio, NVTA Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
               Nays: 
 
 
 
               Absent: 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Laura Sanderlin, NVTA Board Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_________________________________ 
Osman Mufti, NVTA General Counsel 

28



County Program Manager Agency Name: Napa Valley Transportation Authority

Address: 625 Burnell Street

Project Admin (max 6.25%) [1] Total (Project + Admin)
1 Line 1 184,875$        12,325$  197,200$                      
2 Reconciliation and Reprogrammed Funds Line 2 63,153$          5,867$  69,019$                        

14,927$          995$  15,922$  
a. Actual FYE 2022 DMV revenues (based on CY2021) 2a 189,114$        12,608$  201,722$  
b. Estimated FYE 2022 DMV revenues 2b 174,188$        11,613$  185,800$  

48,226$          4,872$  53,098$  
c. Amount available from previously funded projects 2c 43,489$          
d. Admin expended in FYE 2022 2d 7,736$  
e. Interest income earned on TFCA funds in CY 2022 2e 4,737$             

3 Move funds available from Admin to Projects (Optional) Line 3 3,877$            (3,877)$  
4 Estimated Total Available TFCA Funds (Sum of Lines 1, 2 and 3) Line 4 251,905$        14,315$  266,219$  

Percentage of Estimated Revenue allocated to Administrative Costs (maximum of 6.25%)
Previous % from FYE 2022 Expenditure Plan: 6.25%
Current % for FYE 2024: 6.25%

Executive Director Signature Date

[1] The “Estimated TFCA funds budgeted for administration” amount is listed for informational purposes only.  Per California Health and Safety Code Section 44233, County Program Managers must
limit their administrative costs to no more than 6.25% of the actual total revenue received from the Air District.

Summary Information
Directions: Please fill out the yellow highlights.

Estimated FYE 2024 DMV revenues (based on projected CY2022 revenues)

Reconciliation: Difference between prior-year estimate and actual revenue

Reprogrammed: Total available for programming/reprogramming to other projects

I certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the information contained in this application is complete and 
accurate.  

EXHIBIT "A"

29



Project # Project Sponsor/Grantee Project Name $ TFCA Funds Allocated 
$ TFCA Funds 

Expended
$ TFCA Funds 

Available Code*

1. 22NAP01 City of Napa Westwood Ave. Sidewalk Project $40,360 $0 $40,360 CP

2. 23NAP04 Town of Yountville Electric Vehicle Purchase $3,129 $0 $3,129 CP

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

TOTAL TFCA FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR REPROGRAMMING $43,489
(Enter this amount in Line 2.c. of Summary Information form)

* Enter UB (for projects that were completed under budget) or CP (for cancelled project).

Summary Information - Addendum
Complete if there are TFCA Funds available for reprogramming (do not include any CPM administrative budget. E.g., 24ALA00)

Revised 12/30/2021
30



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  APPROVE  

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
 
SUBJECT 
 
Purchase Order 23-P3003 with Platinum Chevrolet to Acquire a new Utility Truck 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications to Purchase Order 23-
P3003 (Attachment 1) for a Transit Maintenance Utility Vehicle for an amount not to 
exceed $63,000 and to contract with a third party for the upfitting for an additional amount 
not to exceed $37,000. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
NVTA’s existing utility truck is a 2001 Dodge Ram that is well beyond its useful life and 
generally obsolete for providing road assistance to NVTA’s more modern vehicles. 
Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 22-R08 for a Class 3 Utility Truck was released on 
October 27, 2022. The RFP was advertised on the NVTA website and Public Purchase.  
The RFP was also shared with local dealerships. No proposals were received by the 
November 4, 2022 due date.  NVTA discussion with local dealers revealed that they did 
not have any new trucks in stock that met the specifications in the RFP.  Therefore, NVTA 
turned to its partner TransDev to search for a new truck in the larger region. TransDev 
found a new truck at Platinum Chevrolet in Santa Rosa that met most of the original 
specifications. Board approval will allow the Executive Director to execute a Purchase 
Order for a new utility truck in an amount not to exceed $100,000 which includes the cost 
of the vehicle for $63,000 and $37,000 for additional equipment prior to delivery.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Yes, approximately $100,000.  This item is budgeted in the Transit Equipment Capital 
budget and Transportation Development Act funds have been identified as the funding 
source. 
 
 

31



February 15, 2023 
 Agenda Item 9.5 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8327 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Purchase Order 23-P3003 with Platinum Chevrolet to Acquire a new 
Utility Truck 

______________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board authorize the Executive 
Director, or designee, to execute and make minor modifications to Purchase Order 23-
P3003 (Attachment 1) for a Transit Maintenance Utility Vehicle in an amount not to exceed 
$63,000 and to contract with a third party for the upfitting for an additional amount not to 
exceed $37,000. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
In 2001, NVTA purchased a Dodge Ram truck for road maintenance calls.  The truck is 
used by maintenance staff to address any maintenance needs of Vine vehicles on their 
routes, to carry supplies, and to assist broken-down vehicles in getting out of a lane of 
traffic and onto the shoulder.  The current truck is over 20 years old and no longer reliable.  
 
Request for Proposal (RFP) No. 22-R08 for a Class 3 Utility Truck was released on 
October 27, 2022 for a new truck to maintenance the fleet.  The RFP was advertised on 
the NVTA website and Public Purchase and local firms were contacted.  NVTA received 
no proposals by the deadline. The RFP had an extensive list of vehicle specifications that 
covered everything from trailering capacity and drivetrain to warranty and delivery.  NVTA 
staff consulted with and found that there was a very limited supply of both new and used 
utility trucks available due to supply chain issues.  
 
TransDev, NVTA’s contracted transit operator, has a larger regional and national 
presence and their Regional Maintenance Manager agreed to help NVTA look for a utility 

32

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


truck.  The Regional Maintenance Manager found a truck at Platinum Chevrolet in Santa 
Rosa that will meet NVTA’s needs.  While the truck is two-wheel drive and not the 
originally requested four-wheel drive, its 6-speed engine and push bumper will still allow 
it to push broken down vehicles off the road.  Once this base truck is purchased it will 
need to be upfitted by a third party with a liftgate, compressor, push bumper and utility 
lights. The initial quote for a specialty truck body company puts the costs of these upfits 
at $36,162.81. 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could decide not to approve Purchase Order 23-P3003.  Maintenance calls 
would then need to be outsourced to another party which would be very costly as an 
outsourced firm is likely to use emergency rates.  
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 2 – Improve system safety in order to support all modes and serve all users. 
 
This new truck with enable Vine maintenance staff to reliably make road calls and arrive 
with the necessary tools to repair Vine vehicles.  
 
ATTACHMENT 
 

(1) Purchase Order 23-P3003 

33



Phone: 707-259-8631 
Fax:     707-259-8638 
www.nvta.ca.gov 

Napa Valley 
Transportation 
Authority 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA 94559 

Business Name 

Requested By Ship Date Ship Via FOB Buyer Terms Tax ID 

SCHENCK KULICK NET 30 68-0471080

QTY Item # Units Description Unit Price Total 

   

  

 

 

 

      

Purchase 

NVTA-Vine Transit  
720 Jackson Street, Napa CA 94559 
Rebecca Schenck | 707.259.8636 | rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 
Kenneth Schwarzbach | 707.251.1098  
kenneth.schwarzbach@transdev.com   

Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
ATTN:  Accounts Payable | 

    ap@nvta.ca.gov 
625 Burnell Street 
Napa, CA  94559-2912 

Bill To: Ship To: 

Purchase Order #:  23-P3003 
Date:    01/30/2023  
Vendor ID:  ______________  

PLATINUM CHEVROLET Santa Rosa 
3001 Corby Avenue 
Santa Rosa, CA 95407 
T  707.978.5911 | F 707.757.8792 
www.platinum-chevy.com 
Craig DeKoning, Fleet & Commercial Manager 
cdekoning@platinum-chevy.com | 707.326.8404 

VENDOR 

NOTICE OF INCLUDED TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Standard general terms and conditions attached. 

VENDOR ACCEPTANCE 
Vendor agrees to furnish and deliver all items or perform all the services set 
forth or otherwise identified above and on any continuation sheets for the 
consideration herein. The rights and obligations of the parties to this con-
tract shall be subject to and governed by the following documents: (a) con-
tract/purchase order, (b) the solicitation, if any, and (c) such provisions, 
representations, certifications, and specifications, as are attached or incor-
porated by reference herein.   

______________________________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Representative                           DATE 

ORDER AWARDED AND ISSUED BY 
Individual listed below is hereby authorized to award ordered 
material/services as specified, or incorporated by reference 
herein, on behalf of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority. 

_____________________________________ 

KATE MILLER, Executive Director     DATE 

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY 

FUND APPROPRIATION: 

THIS ORDER WILL BECOME VALID UPON RECEIPT OF VENDOR ACCEPTANCE. 

 PROJ:  TRANSIT MAINTENANCE  UTILITY VEHICLE 

         1   EA    SERVICE UTILITY TRUCK, Model: Chevrolet 
 Silverado, 2500HD, Year: 2023, Body  Type:  
 Extended Cab Pickup, Color: White, detailed 

  specifications continued on p age 2 of    _  

     $60,711.50

CASH  PRICE $60,711.50

      REBATES   $ -4,300.00

      TAXES   $  4,711.73 

       FEES    $  1,164.75 

      TOTAL   $62,287.98  

10

SUBTOTAL $66,587.98

D R A F T

DESTsee attached    see attached

ATTACHMENT 1
AGENDA ITEM 9.5
FEBRUARY 15, 2023

34



CONTINUATION SHEET PAGE 2 OF 10

ITEM    QTY  UNIT  DESCRIPTION      UNIT PRICE    TOTAL 

2023 CHEVROLET, 2500HD SILVERADO,    $60,711.50 
Double Cab Pickup, 2-Wheel Drive 
(CC20953-LWB), L8T - Engine 6.6L, V-8,  
SIDI, 6-Speed Automatic, Fuel Gasoline 
Color White, Interior Trim Vinyl Jet Black  
Odometer: 19 miles 

VIN 1GB5WLE7XPF152407 

Vehicle included equipment/options: 

o GT4-Rear Axle 3.73 Ratio
o JFG-GVW Rating 10,200 Lbs
o L8T-Engine 6.6L, V-8, SDI
o MYD-6-Speed Automatic
o PYN Wheels 17” Steel, Painted
o YF5-California Emissions
o 5N5-Rear Camera Kit for ZW9 Box

Delete or Chassis Cab (SEO)
o JL1-Integrated Trailer
o KI4-120 Volt Electrical Receptacle,

In Cab
o 1WT-Work Truck Preferred Equipment Group
o 9L3-Spare Tire
o AKO-Glass, Tinted
o AU3-Power Dorr Locks
o C49-Defogger, Rear Window, Electric
o GAZ-Summit White
o IOR-Chevrolet Infotainment, 7” Color Screen
o K47-Heavy Duty Air Filter
o KNP-Transmission Cooling System
o SFW-Back-Up Alarm Calibration (SEO)
o VK3-Front License Plate Mounting Provisions
o 9J4-Bumper Rear
o AE7-Seats Front 40/20/40 Split Bench Uplevel
o AQQ-Keyless Remote Entry
o BG9-Floor Rubberized Vinyl, Black
o DBG-Mirrors, O/S: Manual Extend & Folding,

Heat Turn Indicator
o G80-Auto Locking Differential, Rear
o H2G-2WT-Vinyl, Jet Black, Interior Trim
o K34-Cruise Control
o KC4-Cooler, Engine Oil

35



CONTINUATION SHEET 

ITEM    QTY  UNIT  DESCRIPTION 

      PAGE 3 OF 10

 UNIT PRICE    TOTAL 
o KW7-Alternator, 170 AMP
o QHQ-Tires LT245/75 R17E All Season,

Blackwall
o V76-Recovery Hooks
o YK6-SEO Processing Option
o Radio
o On Star Communication
o Body Manufacturer-Knapheide
o Body Type Description-Service Truck
o Upfit Model Description-Silverado 2500
o Fuel Type-Gasoline

Platinum Cash Price  
Total Taxes  
DMV Fees               

Document Fees
Subtotal

  Manufacturer Rebate

$60,711.50
$  4,711.73
$  1,046.75
$     118.00 
$66,587.98
$ -4,300.00

 TOTAL    $ 62,287.98 

WARRANTY:   3 years/36,000 miles basic; 5 years/60,000 miles powertrain 

DELIVERY:  14 days ARO  

PAYMENT TERMS:  NET; upon delivery and acceptance of vehicle  

DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS:  Pick-up / Delivery 

NVTA Point of Contact:  Rebecca Schenck, Manager – Public Transit 
  rschenck@nvta.ca.gov | 707.259.8636 

36

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


37



38



39



40



41



42



43



February 15, 2023  
NVTA Agenda Item 9.6 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 
 
Updates to Vine Transit Policies 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the NVTA Board approve the revisions to the NVTA Policies, Practices, and 
Procedures Manual: Transit Policies 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
NVTA’s Policies, Practice, and Procedures Manual: Transit Policies was last revised in 
October 2019. Upon recent review, it was noted by staff that a number of updates are 
needed as the Vine Transit system has changed over the last three years. Changes 
include new local and regional routes, changes to Routes 21 and 29, and changes to 
Americans with Disabilities eligibility assessment procedures, 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

44



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 9.6 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  APPROVE 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Libby Payan, Senior Program Planner/Administrator 

(707) 259-8782 / Email: lpayan@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Updates to Vine Transit Policies 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the NVTA Board approve the revisions to the NVTA Policies, Practices, and 
Procedures Manual: Transit Policies. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
NVTA’s Policies, Practice, and Procedures Manual: Transit Policies was last revised in 
October 2019. Upon recent review, it was noted by staff that a number of updates are 
needed as the Vine Transit system has changed over the last three years. In addition to 
minor grammatical edits, the specific proposed updates are as follows: 
 
 Section 1.1.1 Service Standards: The service standards and characteristics matrix 

has been updated to reflect Vine Transit’s current routes 
 Section 3.2.1 F1 Vine Express Fares and Passes: Amended the language to 

reflect where Route 29 currently operates 
 Section 4.1.1 G Complaints and Comments: Updated the file path link and 

included language to reflect the use of the HappyFox Platform to log and track 
complaints, comments and suggestions 

 Section 5.3 Eligibility Determination Process: Updated the language to reflect that 
individuals applying for ADA paratransit service have evaluations over the phone 

45

mailto:lpayan@nvta.ca.gov


 Section 13.1 C Express Routes: Updated language about the Route 21 eliminating 
the stop at Corporate Drive and added language about Route 29 now serving the 
Imola Park and Ride 

 
Approving these proposed revisions will ensure NVTA’s Transit Policies are brought up 
to date and reflect the current state of service. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
The Board could choose not to approve these proposed rendering NVTA’s Transit 
Policies out of date. 
 
STRATEGIC GOALS MET BY THIS PROPOSAL 
 
Goal 1: Serve the transportation needs of the entire community regardless of age, 
income or ability.  
 
Ensuring policies reflect the current state of service will assist all transit riders with having 
access to the most up to date information.  
 
ATTACHMENT 
 

(1) Redlined version of NVTA’s Policies, Practices and Procedures Manual: Transit 
Policies 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



ATTACHMENT 1 
AGENDA ITEM 9.6 
FEBRUARY 15, 2023 

 
 
 
 

 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................ 3 

Section 1.1. Overview .................................................................................................. 3 
1.1.1 Service Standards ........................................................................................ 3 
1.1.2 Performance Measures and Performance Standards .................................. 4 

CHAPTER 2 MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES ................................................................. 13 
Section 2.1. Overview ................................................................................................ 13 

2.1.1 Major Service Change ............................................................................... 13 
CHAPTER 3 PASSENGER FARES, PASSES & TRANSFERS ................................... 15 

Section 3.1. Definitions .............................................................................................. 15 
Section 3.2. Fare Policies .......................................................................................... 16 

3.2.1 Revenue Collection Principles ................................................................... 16 
CHAPTER 4 PASSENGER COMPLAINT & COMMENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
. ..................................................................................................................................... 23 

Section 4.1. Overview ................................................................................................ 23 
4.1.1 Complaints & Comments ........................................................................... 23 
4.1.2 Requests for Reasonable Modification ....................................................... 24 

CHAPTER 5 ADA PARATRANSIT POLICIES .............................................................. 25 
Section 5.1. Service Overview ................................................................................... 25 
Section 5.2. NVTA Eligibility Standards ...................................................................... 25 
Section 5.3. Eligibility Determination Process ............................................................ 25 
Section 5.4. Eligibility Categories ............................................................................... 26 
Section 5.5. Appeals Process .................................................................................... 26 
Section 5.6. Visitors ................................................................................................... 27 
Section 5.7. Reservation and Scheduling................................................................... 27 
Section 5.8. Hours of Operation and Service Area ..................................................... 27 
Section 5.9. Fares ...................................................................................................... 27 
Section 5.10. Mobility Devices ................................................................................... 28 
Section 5.11. Passenger Accompaniment .................................................................. 28 
Section 5.12. Passenger Assistance .......................................................................... 29 
Section 5.13. No-Shows............................................................................................. 29 
Section 5.14. Pick-Ups ............................................................................................... 29 
Section 5.15. Denials and Missed Trips ..................................................................... 30 
Section 5.16. Trip Length ........................................................................................... 30 
Section 5.17. Equivalent Service ................................................................................ 30 

CHAPTER 6 CHARTER & SCHOOL BUS .................................................................... 31 
Section 6.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 31 

CHAPTER 7 SHARED VEHICLE PROGRAM .............................................................. 32 

Approved XX04-XX18-202318 
Revised 10-23-2019 

TRANSIT POLICIES 

NVTA 
POLICIES, PRACTICES, AND PROCEDURES MANUAL 

47



Section 7.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 32 
7.1.1 Participation ............................................................................................... 32 
7.1.2 NVTA Responsibilities ................................................................................ 32 

CHAPTER 8 TAXI SCRIP ............................................................................................. 33 
Section 8.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 33 

8.1.1 Participation & Compliance ........................................................................ 33 
8.1.1.1 Users ...................................................................................................... 33 
8.1.1.2 Agencies ................................................................................................. 33 

CHAPTER 9 PASSENGER POLICIES ......................................................................... 35 
Section 9.1. Statement of Policy ................................................................................ 35 
Section 9.2. Passenger Code of Conduct .................................................................. 35 

CHAPTER 10 VEHICLE ACCIDENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES ............................. 37 
Section 10.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 37 

CHAPTER 11 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR ................................................................... 38 
Section 11.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 38 

CHAPTER 12 SAFETY & SECURITY ........................................................................... 39 
Section 12.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 39 

CHAPTER 13 BUS STOP PLACEMENT ...................................................................... 40 
Section 13.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 40 

CHAPTER 14 CONTRACTOR RELATIONS & OVERSIGHT ....................................... 43 
Section 14.1. Overview .............................................................................................. 43 

CHAPTER 15 TITLE VI ................................................................................................. 44 
Section 15.1. Statement of Policy .............................................................................. 44 

48



CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION 
 

Section 1.1. Overview 
The Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) is responsible for the provision 
of all public transit service in the Napa Valley. It is the agency’s commitment to 
operate safe, effective, and efficient services, maintain the highest standards of 
quality, integrity and customer service, and comply with all applicable local, State 
and Federal laws. The polices and standards identified are designed to uphold 
these ideals. 

1.1.1 Service Standards 

49



 EFFECTIVENESS PERFORMANCE/EFICIENCY 
 
Service Type 

 
Density 

Peak and 
Base Fre- 
quencies* 

Service 
Span* 

 
Scheduling Route 

Structure 
Load Fac- 

tor* 
Vehi- 
cles 

Stop 
Spacing 
Spac  

 

 
Stop Amenities* 

Farebox 
Recov- 

ery 

Passen- 
gers per 

hour 

On-time 
Perform- 

ance* 
Local 
and 

Regional 
(Routes 

1 
through 

11)(City of 
Napa 
Fixed 

Routes 
and 

Routes 
10 and 

11) 

4,000 to 
5,000 

(Medium 
Den- 
sity) 

[such as 
urban 

areas of 
Napa] 

Not to  
exceed 30  
minutes in 

the peak and 
Not to 

exceed 30 
minutes in 

the peak and 
60 minutes 
midday60 
minutes  
midday  

Frequency of 
service 

should never 
be more than 
one bus per 

hour 

7 AM to 
7 PM 

(Monday 
to Satur- 

day); 5AM 
to 9 PM 

for valley- 
wide 

commuter 
routes. 

Clock Head- 
ways pre- 

ferredpreferre
d 

Modified 
Grid: uses 
the layout 

of the 
urban area 

1.251.25 
Less 

than 1.5 in 
peak, less 

than or 
equal to 
1.0 in off 

peak 

Standard 
40' or 

smaller 
vehicle to 

meet 
load 

1/4 to 1/2  
mile  

depending  
on density  
Depends 

upon 
whether stop 
is urban or 
suburban in 
nature. See 

Chapter 
131/4 to 1/2 

mile 
depending 
on density 

Shelters based 
on high ridership 
routes in areas 

with lower 
frequency 

Meet or 
exceed 

17% 

Twelve 
passenger 
per hour 

90% of 
service will 
operate on 

time 
(between 0 

minutes 
early and 5 

minutes late) 

Regional  
(Urban)  
Express 

(Routes 201 
& 29)Regional 

(Urban)  
(Routes 21 & 

29) 

3,000 to 
4,000 
(Low 

Density) 

Not to  
exceed 2  

hours in the  
peak. 

No midday  
standard.  

Frequency of 
service 

should never 
be more than 
one bus per 
one and a 

half hoursNot 
to exceed 2 
hours in the 

peak. No 
Midday 

standard. 

6 AM to 
7 PM 

(Monday 
to Friday) 
9 PM for 
valley- 
wide 

commuter 
routes. 

Scheduled to 
meet regional 
connections 

Focal 
Point: 

provides 
access 

between 
two focal 
areas to 
provide 
regional 

and 
intercity 

connectivit 
y 

1.00 Equal 
to or less 

than 
1.01.00 

Standard 
40' or 

smaller 
vehicle to 

meet 
load 

1/2 to 1 mile 
depending 

on density or 
1/2 to 1 mile 
depending 
on density 

or trip 
generators 

and 
attractors 
(such as 
school, 

shopping, 
medical)trip  
generators  

and  
attractors  
(such as  
school,  

shopping,  
medical)  
Average 
25,000ft 
apart 

centered 
upon major 
employment 

centers 

Shelters based 
on high ridership 
routes in areas 

with lower 
frequency 

Meet or 
exceed 

17% 

Seven 
passengers 

per hour 

90% of 
service will 
operate on 

time 
(between 0 

minutes 
early and 5 

minutes late) 

Community 
(American 

Canyon and 
St. 

HelenaCity 
of Napa) 

3,000 to 
4,000 
(Low 

Density) 

Not to  
exceed 45  
minutes in 

the peak and 
Not to 

exceed 45 
minutes in 
the peak 
and 90 
minutes 

midday90 
minutes  
midday. 

Upon call in  
  

  
   

 

7 AM to 
5 PM 

(Monday 
to Friday) 
or based 

upon 
available 

funds 

As required to 
meet demand 

Focal 
Point: 

provides 
access 

between 
focal areas 

within a 
small 

community 

1.251.25 
Less 

than 1.5 in 
peak for 

local 
service, 

less than 
or equal to 
1.0 in off 

peak 

30' 
vehicle or 
smaller 

1/2 to 2/3  
mile  

depending 
on density or 
1/2 to 1 mile 
depending 
on density 

or trip 
generators 

and 
attractors 
(such as 
school, 

shopping  
  
  

  
  

   
  

  
  

 

Shelters based 
on high ridership 
routes in areas 

with lower 
frequency 

Meet or 
exceed 

10% 

Five 
passenger 
per hour 

90% of  
service will  
operate on  

time  
(between 0  

minutes  
early and 5 
minutes late) 

90% of 
service will 
arrive within 
30 minutes 

of call in 
City 

Demand 
Response 
(Calistoga, 
St. Helena, 

and 
Yountville)e 
(Calistoga 

and 
Yountville) 

3,000 
and 

below 

Upon call in, 
service will 
arrive within 

15 - 30 
minutes. 

Service 
based 
upon 

available 
funds 

As requested No 
standard 

No  
standard  
Less than 
1.5 in peak 

for local 
service, 

less than 
or equal to 

1.0 in off 
peakNo 
standard 

30' 
vehicle or 
smaller 

No standard Shelter 
locations are 

responsibility of 
city partners 

Meet or 
Exceed 

10% 
(includes 
City or 
other 

sponsor 
funding) 

Two 
passengers 

per hour 

90% of 
service will 
arrive within 
30 minutes 

of call in 

*Required by Title VI for Fixed Route Service Only        

 
 
 

1.1.2 Performance Measures and Performance Standards 

50



In order to meet the mobility needs of the residents of Napa County, NVTA strives to 
implement the highest quality transit services possible. The measures and performance 
standards ensure that NVTA can monitor and responded to any deficiencies that may be 
the outcome of poor quality of service. 

 
Measure Standard 

 
Total Ridership 

Fixed Route: Increase over prior fiscal year 
Paratransit: Growth should not lead to denials 
Community Shuttles: Growth should not lead to 
excessive wait times 

Passengers per Revenue 
Vehicle Hour 

Fixed Route: Greater than 80% of system average 
Paratransit: Greater than 2.0 
Community Shuttles: Greater than 4.0 

 
 

Load factor 

Fixed Route: Less than 1.5 in peak for local service, 
less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak for local service. All 
commuter services should be equal to or less than 1.0 
during all times of day. 
Paratransit: Never exceed 1.0 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1.5 in peak for local 
service, less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak. 

Percent Missed Trips per 
Trip Miles 

Fixed Route: Less than .01% 
Paratransit: 0% 
Community Shuttles: Less than .01% 

 
Scheduled On-Time Arrivals 

Fixed Route: Equal or greater than 90% on-time 
Paratransit: Equal or greater than 97% on-time 
Community Shuttles: 90% of service will arrive within 
30 minutes of request for service. 

Passenger Injuries All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 passenger trips 
Preventable Accidents All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 

 
 
Complaints 

Fixed Route: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 
Paratransit: No more than 1 complaint for every 600 
passenger trips. 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1 per 5,000 revenue 
miles 

Percent of Trips Denied Paratransit: 0% 
Cleanliness of Buses Interiors and exteriors cleaned daily 

 
 
 
Proximity to Service 

Fixed Route: 95% of dwelling units in areas having six 
or more units per acre to be located with 1-4 mile of a 
stop, all major destinations to be within 1-8 of a mile of a 
stop. 
Paratransit: Service will be available to all qualifying 
residents of Napa County with residences, destinations, 
or the ability to find alternate means to come within 3-4 
of a mile from Vine fixed route service. 

Frequency of Service Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never be 
more than one bus per hour for local and intercity 

51



Measure Standard 
 buses. Commuter service frequency should never be 

more than one bus per one and half hours. System 
average should be 45 minutes or less. 

Percentage of ADA 
Accessible Stops 

100% of all new stops shall be ADA accessible, existing 
stops should be made accessible to the greatest extent 
possible. 

Bus Stop Amenities Stops which average 50 or more riders a day should 
have a shelter installed if feasible. 

Trip length Paratransit: Trips should not exceed 1.25 times that of 
an equivalent trip on fixed route transit. 

52



1.1.3 Operate Safe, Reliable, and Comfortable Service 
Safe, reliable, and comfortable service are NVTA’s top priorities. Promoting safe habits 
for drivers and delivering service people want to use benefits the agency as well as the 
community. 

 
 
 

Measure Standard 
 
Average Age of Fleet by 
Vehicle Type 

Fixed Route: Average age should not exceed 12 
years. 
Paratransit: Average age should not exceed 4 years. 
Community Shuttles: Average age should not exceed 
4 years. 

 
 
Average Mileage of Fleet by 
Vehicle Type 

Fixed Route: Average should not exceed 500,000 
miles. 
Paratransit: Average should not exceed 100,000 
miles. 
Community Shuttles: Average should not exceed 
100,000 miles. 

 
Scheduled On-Time Arrivals 

Fixed Route: Equal or greater than 90% on-time 
Paratransit: Equal or greater than 97% on-time 
Community Shuttles: 90% of service will arrive within 
30 minutes of request for service. 

Passenger Injuries All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 passenger trips 
Preventable Accidents All Modes: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 

 
 
Complaints 

Fixed Route: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 
Paratransit: No more than 1 complaint for every 600 
passenger trips. 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1 per 5,000 revenue 
miles 

Percent of Trips Denied Paratransit: 0% 
Cleanliness of Buses All Modes: Interiors and exteriors cleaned daily 

Percent Missed Trips per Trip 
Miles 

Fixed Route: Less than .01% 
Paratransit: 0% 
Community Shuttles: Less than .01% 

Preventative Maintenance 
Work Completed On-Time Greater than 99% 

Vehicle Service Miles 
Between Road Calls Greater than 25,000 miles 

 
 
 
Load factor 

Fixed Route: Less than 1.5 in peak for local service, 
less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak for local service. All 
commuter services should be equal to or less than 1.0 
during all times of day. 
Paratransit: Never exceed 1.0 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1.5 in peak for local 
service, less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak. 

53



Measure Standard 
 
 
Frequency of Service 

Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never be 
more than one bus per hour for local and intercity 
buses. Commuter service frequency should never be 
more than one bus per one and half hours. System 
average should be 45 minutes or less. 

Percentage of ADA 
Accessible Stops 

100% of all new stops shall be ADA accessible, 
existing stops should be made accessible to the 
greatest extend possible 

Bus Stop Amenities Stops which average 50 or more riders a day should 
have a shelter installed if feasible. 

Trip length Paratransit: Trips should not exceed 1.25 times that of 
an equivalent trip on fixed route transit. 

54



1.1.4 Efficiently Use of Resources 
NVTA strives to use its resources in an efficient and responsible manner. Ensuring needs 
are met and budgets are not overrun are two of NVTA’s top financial goals. 

 
Measure Standard 

 
Total Ridership 

Fixed Route: Increase over prior fiscal year 
Paratransit: Growth should not lead to denials 
Community Shuttles: Growth should not lead to 
excessive wait times 

Passengers per Revenue 
Vehicle Hour 

Fixed Route: Greater than 80% of system average 
Paratransit: Greater than 2.0 
Community Shuttles: Greater than 4.0 

 
Subsidy per Passenger 

Fixed Route: At or less than $6.50 
Paratransit: At or less than $40 
Community Shuttles: At or less than $15 

Operating Cost per Service 
Hour Fixed Route: At or less than $60 

Operating Cost per Revenue 
Hour 

Paratransit: At or less than $90 
Community Shuttles: 

Operating Cost per 
Passenger 

Fixed Route: At or less than $4.50 
Paratransit: At or less than $24 
Community Shuttles: At or less than $75 

 
Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Fixed Route: Meet or exceed 15%. 
Paratransit: Meet or exceed 10%. 
Community Shuttles: Meet or exceed 10%. 

 
 

Load factor 

Fixed Route: Less than 1.5 in peak for local service, 
less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak for local service. 
All commuter services should be equal to or less than 
1.0 during all times of day. 
Paratransit: Never exceed 1.0 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1.5 in peak for local 
service, less than or equal to 1.0 in off peak. 

Percent Missed Trips per Trip 
Miles 

Fixed Route: Less than .01% 
Paratransit: 0% 
Community Shuttles: Less than .01% 

 
Scheduled On-Time Arrivals 

Fixed Route: Equal or greater than 90% on-time 
Paratransit: Equal or greater than 97% on-time 
Community Shuttles: 90% of service will arrive within 
30 minutes of request for service. 

 
 
Complaints 

Fixed Route: Less than 1 per 100,000 revenue miles 
Paratransit: No more than 1 complaint for every 600 
passenger trips. 
Community Shuttles: Less than 1 per 5,000 revenue 
miles 

Percent of Trips Denied Paratransit: 0% 

55



Measure Standard 
 
 
 
Proximity to Service 

Fixed Route: 95% of dwelling units in areas having six 
or more units per acre to be located with 1-4 mile of a 
stop, all major destinations to be within 1-8 of a mile of 
a stop. 
Paratransit: Service will be available to all qualifying 
residents of Napa County with residences, 
destinations, or the ability to find alternate means to 
come within 3-4 of a mile from Vine fixed route service. 

 
 
Frequency of Service 

Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never be 
more than one bus per hour for local and intercity 
buses. Commuter service frequency should never be 
more than one bus per one and half hours. System 
average should be 45 minutes or less. 

56



1.1.5 Be a Forward Think Organization Meeting the Needs of an 
Evolving and Diverse Community 

NVTA is always looking for new and useful technology that will make operating the system 
more efficient as well as attract new riders. By listening to the needs and wants of the 
community as well as introducing useful tools to the system NVTA will be able to create 
a strong and vibrant transit system. 

 
Measure Standard 

 
 
Stop Spacing 

Stops should be spaced no closer than 1-4 of a 
mile and no further than 1-3 of a mile in urban 
areas. Stops located in rural areas will be 
evaluated on a case by case basis to ensure that 
ADA accessibility requirements are met and there 
is a clear and present demand. 

 
 
 

Proximity to Service 

Fixed Route: 95% of dwelling units in areas 
having six or more units per acre to be located 
with 1-4 mile of a stop, all major destinations to be 
within 1-8 of a mile of a stop. 
Paratransit: Service will be available to all 
qualifying residents of Napa County with 
residences, destinations, or the ability to find 
alternate means to come within 3-4 of a mile from 
Vine fixed route service. 

 
 
Frequency of Service 

Fixed Route: Frequency of service should never 
be more than one bus per hour for local and 
intercity buses. Commuter service frequency 
should never be more than one bus per one and 
half hours. System average should be 45 minutes 
or less. 

Percentage of ADA Accessible 
Stops 

100% of all new stops shall be ADA accessible, 
existing stops should be made accessible to the 
greatest extend possible 

Bus Stop Amenities Stops which average 50 or more riders a day 
should have a shelter installed if feasible. 

 
 
Average Age of Fleet by Vehicle 
Type 

Fixed Route: Average age should not exceed 12 
years. 
Paratransit: Average age should not exceed 4 
years. 
Community Shuttles: Average age should not 
exceed 4 years. 

 
Average Mileage of Fleet by 
Vehicle Type 

Fixed Route: Average should not exceed 500,000 
miles. 
Paratransit: Average should not exceed 100,000 
miles. 

57



Measure Standard 
 Community Shuttles: Average should not 

exceed 100,000 miles. 

 
Total Ridership 

Fixed Route: Increase over prior fiscal year 
Paratransit: Growth should not lead to denials 
Community Shuttles: Growth should not lead to 
excessive wait times 

 
Passengers per Revenue Vehicle 
Hour 

Fixed Route: Greater than 80% of system 
average 
Paratransit: Greater than 2.0 
Community Shuttles: Greater than 4.0 

Maintain an up-to-date list of 
stakeholders 

Contact individuals and organizations yearly to 
ensure information is up-to-date on contact list. 

Implement Public Outreach in 
Accordance with the Title VI 
Public Participation Plan 

Complete check-list of required processes in 
accordance with Title VI Public Participation Plan 
prior to an outreach event. 

 
Land Use Coordination 

Comment on all design referrals with obvious 
transit nexus. Ensure participation on any TAC for 
major local land use projects 

58



CHAPTER 2 MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES 
 

Section 2.1. Overview 
Prior to Board approval all major service changes will be subject to an equity 
analysis, which includes an analysis of adverse effects. 

2.1.1 Major Service Change 
A “Major Service Change” is defined as the following, unless otherwise noted 
under E. EXCEPTIONS: 

A. A new transit route. (The reassignment of existing route numbers, 
including reassignment of numbers resulting from splitting or 
combining two or more existing routes, which creates a new route 
“number” will not constitute a new transit route. Should the 
adjustment impact miles or hours, criteria (c) and (d) shall be 
considered); or 

B. New service on streets not previously used by any route (excluding 
major arterial streets and streets designated as a truck route); or 

C. Any aggregate change of 30 percent or more of the number of transit 
revenue hours of a route computed on a daily basis for the day of the 
week for which the change is proposed; or 

D. Routing changes that alter 40 percent or more of a route’s path. 
Minor changes to an existing route shall not constitute a “major 
change in route.” 

E. EXCEPTIONS: Exceptions to the major adjustments of transit 
service include: 
1. Changes to a service on a route with productivity levels at 50 

percent or below of NVTA’s Transit standards in a typical 
service day are not considered “major” unless service on that 
route is eliminated completely on any such day. Productivity 
standards are based on NVTA’s Transit’s route typology as 
adopted in the Short Range Transit Plan. 

2. Headway adjustments from existing headways of up to 20 
minutes not made in conjunction with a change in revenue 
vehicle miles or hours provided in (c) and (d) above. 

3. Standard seasonal variations, unless the variation, as 
compared to operations during the previous season, fall within 
the definition of major adjustments listed above. 

4. The introduction or discontinuation of short- or limited-term 
service (e.g., promotional, demonstration, seasonal or 
emergency service, or service provided as mitigation or 

 
 
 
 

Board Approved: 

59



diversions for construction or other similar activities), as long 
as the service will be or has been operated for no more than 
twelve months. Emergency service changes include changes 
in routes of service frequencies that may be necessitated due 
to a disaster that severely impairs public health or safety; 
changes in access to public streets (such as street closures); 
or the ability of Agency equipment to travel on public streets. 

5. The restoration of service previously eliminated due to budget 
constraints, provided the service runs on the same route as it 
had prior to its elimination, subject to minor deviations that do 
not exceed the requirements of (a), (b), (c), or (d) above. 

6. Changes to infrequent, seasonal, or supplemental routes, 
including supplemental school routes that meet the 
requirements of (a) or (b). 

60



CHAPTER 3 PASSENGER FARES, PASSES & TRANSFERS 
 

Section 3.1. Definitions 
For the purposes of these policies, the following definitions shall apply: 
Fare: The fee charged and received by NVTA in exchange for transit services 
provided. The fare can be in the form of cash payment at the time of service, 
prepayment through other means or Clipper. Many transit fares are typically 
collected and recorded via an electronic recording device, known as a farebox; 
however, this is not the only method of collecting and recording fees. This policy 
may use the term fare and farebox interchangeably, andinterchangeably and shall 
be interpreted as the totality of the fees. 
Base Fare: For purposes of the fare policy, the base fare will be defined as the 
single unlinked trip, full cash fare. 
Youth Fare: Fare for any rider 18 years of age and under (photo ID with proof of 
age required). 
Child Fare: Fare for any child 5 years of age and younger. 
Express Bus Route: A deluxe bus route characterized by one or more segments 
of high-speed, non-stop operation, and with a limited number of stops which are 
generally provided for commuter service. 
Fare Media: Fare media shall be defined as all passes, tickets, cards or ID’sIDs 
sold or otherwise distributed for use on various NVTA services. 
Half-Fare: Fares, as defined above, for eligible persons with disabilities, senior 
riders or Medicare cardholders. The cash half fare is the maximum of one-half of 
the full cash fare or the current FTA guidelines (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 
49, Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609), rounded down to an increment of $0.05. 
Local Bus Route: Any fixed route bus service not designated as an express or 
shuttle bus route. 
Shuttle Bus Route: Local distribution services that operate in a small area and 
are used for shorter than average length trips are classified as shuttle services. 
Mode: Defines the different types of services offered by NVTA, which includes 
local bus, express bus, shuttle bus and Para-TransitParatransit. 
Senior: Any person ageaged 65 or older (photo ID with proof of age required at 
boarding). 
Person with Disability: People who meet the currently enforced Federal Transit 
Administration’s (FTA) definition of people with disabilities. At the time of the 
adoption of this policy, the definition is: “any individual who, by reason of illness, 
injury, age, congenital malfunction, or other incapacity or temporary or permanent 
disability (including any individual who is a wheelchair user or has semi-ambulatory 
capabilities), cannot use effectively, without special facilities, planning or design, 
mass transportation service or a mass transportation facility.” 

61



Medicare Cardholders: Individuals who have been issued a Medicare card, 
regardless of age or disability. 
Day Pass: A 24 hour24-hour period pass valid for unlimited travel on all VINE fixed 
route services (excluding Route 29) for one calendar day from the time of activation 
through the end of the service day. 
Monthly Pass: A thirty (31) day period pass valid for unlimited travel on all VINE 
fixed route services (excluding the Route 29) for 31 calendar days from the day of 
activation through the end of the 31st consecutive service day. 
Section 3.2. Fare Policies 
Napa Valley Transportation Authority’s (NVTA) Fare Policy establishes principles 
and polices that govern recovery of passenger revenues in support of NVTA’s 
vision of the Vine being a customer-driven and efficient public transportation 
system serving the County of Napa. 

 
3.2.1 Revenue Collection Principles 

Generally, fares are required to generate revenue to offset a component part of 
NVTA’s expenses as defined by the Transportation Development Act (TDA) as 
part of a sustainable long-term Financial Plan. The following principles guide 
establishment and management of NVTA’s fare revenue collections: 

A. Promote ridership on all transit related services: NVTA seeks to 
encourage and facilitate transit ridership within VINE’s service area. 
Vine’s fares shall; therefore, be devised to be attractive to the widest 
possible range of existing and potential rider groups. 

B. Equitable fares: To be equitable, fares must take into account the 
needs of Vine’s riders as well as the cost and value of the service 
provided by the Vine. Vine’s fares shall support the travel patterns 
and requirements of transit riders throughout the service area and 
shall also reflect differences in the characteristics and frequency of 
the service provided, while not undervaluing Vine’s service. 

C. Enhance mobility & access: Vine fares shall enhance the ability of 
riders to access the system and move through it with ease. To do 
so, Vine fares shall be easy to understand and shall promote a 
unified system by simplifying and, where effective and possible, 
unifying fares across services. 

D. Effective & cost efficient: Vine’s fare pricing, fare policy, fare media 
distribution channels, and fare collection technologies shall be 
developed and operated to be easily applied by transit operating 
employees, as well as to minimize the costs associated with fare 
collection, fare media distribution and revenue processing. 

E. Management: Vine’s fares and fare collection system shall be 
designed to facilitate data collection to foster analytical decision 
making by NVTA’s staff. 

62



In keeping with these principles, the policies governing Vine’s fares are set forth 
below: 

A. Farebox Recovery: Vine collects fares from passengers riding its 
transit services as one element of funding these services. These 
fares are then used to offset the costs of providing the transit service, 
otherwise known as Farebox Recovery. The Farebox Recovery ratio 
is defined as the ratio of the transit fares to the operating costs. 
NVTA’s farebox recovery ratio target shall be equal to those targets 
set forth by Transit Development Act regulations. Urban transit 
services, Vine and American Canyon Transit, have a farebox 
recovery target different than that of rural transit (Calistoga Shuttle, 
St. Helena Shuttle and Yountville Trolley) and ADA Paratransit 
services. See note D at the end of this document for current 
regulatory farebox recovery rates. 

B. Vine Fare Adjustments: Fare adjustments are defined as any 
permanent changes to Vine’s fare structure. Decisions on fare 
adjustments are made by the NVTA’s Board of Directors. Prior to 
making a decision on a fare adjustment, the Board shall consider the 
recommendation by NVTA’s staff, including but not limited to an 
analysis of the impacts on minorities and low-income individuals 
consistent with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 
2000d et seq), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Title VI 
regulations (49 CFR part 21), and FTA’s Circular 4702.1B, including 
any future amendments thereto, as well as NVTA’s Title VI Policy. 
Prior to raising a fare, NVTA shall solicit and consider public 
comment in compliance with 49 USC Chapter 53 and FTA Circular 
9030.1C, including any future amendments thereto. Implementation 
of a fare adjustment shall occur no earlier than 30 days and no later 
than 12 months following approval by the Board of Directors. Any 
change in the fare shall be rounded to the nearest $.05. 
Fare adjustments shall be considered by the NVTA Board under the 
following scenarios: 
1. Following NVTA’s annual report if VINE has failed to meet its 

farebox ratio goal defined in the fare policy. 
2. Every three years the NVTA Board of Directors will consider 

fare adjustments to match the previous three years of CPI-U 
for the San Francisco – Oakland – San Jose Region or to 
match the percent increase in Vine expenditures for the 
previous three years whichever is greater. Unless the farebox 
ratio for the previous fiscal year is equal to or greater than 
20%. In which case fare increases shall be paused. 
NVTA staff will annually report to the Board a review of 
farebox revenues and the farebox recovery ratio for the entire 
system and service.  NVTA staff will recommend possible 

63



solutions for meeting the minimum farebox recovery if 
analysis indicates it has not been met. Solutions may include 
a recommendation for a fare adjustment. Such 
recommendation will include consideration of economic 
trends, Vine’s current and future operating health and the 
value of services, both qualitative and quantitative, in the 
communities served. 

C. Fare Differentials: Vine’s fares shall balance simplicity and 
uniformity of fares with the equity of pricing services consistent with 
the cost and value of providing that service. The number of fare 
types, levels, and fare payment instruments shall consider the ease 
of enforcement by vehicle operators, ease of understanding by 
customers and the ease of tracking with both the farebox technology 
and the back-office technology. 
Services that cost more to operate or provide additional value to 
passengers compared with local bus service are considered 
premium services, and may be priced higher (but never lower) than 
local bus service. Premium services include express buses, 
paratransit, and if implemented in the future, bus rapid transit. The 
price structure for each premium service will be set separately. 
Local distribution services that operate in a small area and are used 
for shorter than average length trips provide less value to riders and 
are classified as shuttle services. Shuttle services may be priced 
equal to or lower than local bus service. 

D. Vine-GO Paratransit Fares: Vine Go’s policy, in compliance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Section 
12143) and the implementing FTA Regulations (49 CFR Section 
37.121) is that ADA complementary paratransit fares will equal twice 
the regular fixed-route fare for the same trip. If the Act is changed, 
this policy shall be changed to be consistent with federal law. If ADA 
complementary paratransit provides service beyond or in addition to 
the federally defined ADA complementary paratransit service, a 
higher fare shall be charged for that service. 

 
E. Vine Local Passes: Prepayment of fares on the fixed-route system 

shall be encouraged. Monthly local Vine passes shall be discounted 
to provide some savings to commuters compared with the cash fare, 
but not less than 30 (See Attachment A) times the cash fare. Day 
passes shall be priced at least equivalent to the cost of three 
boardings and no more than the cost of six boardings. Twenty ride 
passes shall provide the equivalent of 20 rides and shall be 
discounted no more than 10% (See Attachment A) from the actual 
value. These policies shall be applied equitably across all fare types 
(Adult, Youth and Discount). Passes shall be priced to expedite the 

64



boarding process. 
Employer, university or schools and other qualifying group pass 
programs shall be priced so that either: 
1. The anticipated average revenue per boarding to VINE from 

such programs is approximately equal to or greater than 
VINE’s average revenue per boarding for the two most recent 
fiscal years excluding these programs, or 

2. The anticipated revenue from the program is at least equal to 
the estimated revenue previously generated by the riders 
switching to the program. 

F. Vine Express Fares and Passes 
1. Vine Route 29: Vine Route 29 is a partially grant funded 

premium express service from Calistoga The Redwood Park 
and Ride in the City of Napa to the Vallejo Ferry andEl Cerrito 
Del Norte BART Station. As such it is primarily intended to 
service commuters traveling to and from the City of San 
Francisco and the East BayBay Area. The cash fares shall be 
split into a two tiered system with one fare to the Vallejo Ferry 
Terminal and higher fare to BART. As a grant funded route 
the farebox requirement for the Route 29 is 20% and the fare 
structure is independent of the local VINE routes. As a 
commuter route the discounted fare provisions of this policy do 
not apply to the Route 29 therefore all cash and pass fares 
shall be equal. The Route 29 farebox ratio and fares shall be 
reviewed on the same schedule set forth for the local routes 
but there is no provision for automatic increases to the fares. 
Passes will cost no less than 20 (See Attachment B) times the 
cash fare. Only Route 29 monthly passes shall be valid on the 
Route 29. Punch passes can be used on the Route 29 but a 
single ride will cost multiple punches depending on the 
destination. Transfers are not accepted onto the Route 29 but 
transfers shall be issued for use on other eligible VINE routes 
upon request. 

2. Vine Route 21: Vine Route 21 is a grant funded premium 
express route servicing a connection between the Soscol 
Gateway Transit Center and the Suisun City Train Depot. As 
a grant funded route the Route 21 is not required by law to 
meet a specific farebox recovery ratio but by NVTA policy it is 
the goal of the agency to reach a farebox recovery ratio equal 
to that of the regulatory minimum for rural transit services. The 
Route 21 farebox ratio and fares shall be reviewed on the same 
schedule set forth for the local routed but there is no provision 
for automatic increases to the fares. Cash fares for the Route 
21 are set independent of the VINE local fares and as a 
commuter route the discounted fare provisions of the 

65



local VINE service do not apply to the Route 21. The Route 
21 does not have a distinct monthly pass but all other passes 
are valid for use on the Route 21. In the case of a punch pass 
one ride shall be equal to two punches. Transfers are 
accepted onto the Route 21 from any other VINE route. 

G. Local Shuttle Services: Local shuttle service fares (St. Helena, 
Yountville, Calistoga and American Canyon) are defined by the 
individual Agreements between the jurisdiction and NVTA. These 
shuttle services are not subject to any provision stated in the Fare 
Policy except those required by law and defined within the relevant 
Agreement. 

H. Promotions and Special Events: Fare promotions, including 
special event fares, may be used to attract riders to Vine services. 
Fare promotions can be a cost-effective method of attracting riders 
to new services (such as new bus routes) and existing services. For 
the purpose of this policy, Fare Promotions shall be defined as any 
new fare card, fare media, cash fare or other transit fare which is not 
part of the adopted fare structure and may be priced higher or lower 
than Vine’s regular fares. Fare Promotions are not required to 
include a specific fare for seniors, Medicare cardholders or 
individuals with disabilities, however the rates charged seniors, 
Medicare cardholders or individuals with disabilities during off-peak 
hours must not exceed one-half of the rates generally applicable to 
other persons at peak hours (excluding the Fare Promotion) as 
required by FTA regulations (Code of Federal Regulations, Title 49, 
Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609). Fare promotions must be able to 
be implemented within the capabilities of the current fare collection 
technology in use at the time of the implementation. Fare promotions 
shall not exceed a six (6) month period. If the promotion is deemed 
to be successful and management desires it to be part of the fare 
structure, then management shall bring the issue and analysis to the 
Board of Directors for adoption into the current fare structure. Should 
the fare promotion result in “free rides”. Pass holders with a 31-day 
pass activated before the beginning of the promotion and valid during 
the period of the promotion shall receive a period pass equal to the 
free period. To remain equitable all paratransit service shall be free 
during free ride promotions 

I. New Payment: Options Fare payment options that effectively attract 
a different market segment or encourage increased use of Vine 
services by current riders shall be developed; but must be within the 
realm of current or planned hardware, software and back-office 
technologies. Initial pricing for such options shall be set such that 
VINE is not expected to lose fare revenue, unless the Board of 
Directors specifically approves an estimated amount of lost revenue. 

J. Design: The design of fare payment instruments shall consider the 

66



ease of enforcement by bus operators, ease of understanding by 
customers and the ease of tracking with both the farebox technology 
and the back-office technology. 

K. Child and Youth Fares - Vine Local Route Services: Up to two 
children, 5 years of age or less, ride free with each adult over 18 
paying their fares. Additional children must pay $.50 per child. No 
child under the age of seven may ride without an accompanying 
adult. 
Youth shall be defined as persons ages 6 - 18. Youth may qualify for 
a reduced fare based on the type of service being provided and the 
publicized fare. Youth fare is calculated by subtracting $.50 from the 
full adult fare. In all cases, the youth will no longer qualify for any 
youth discounts on his/hertheir 19th birthday. 

L. Half-Fare Program – Vine Local Fixed Route Services: The 
objective of the Half-Fare Program is to provide reduced fares for 
fixed route services for seniors, persons with disabilities and 
Medicare cardholders in compliance with the Federal Transit 
Administration’s half-fare requirements (Code of Federal 
Regulations, Title 49, Subtitle B, Chapter Vi, Part 609). 
Who is eligible for the half-fare program? 
1. Persons aged 65 and older, unless the FTA regulations 

defining seniors are changed in the future, in which case the 
FTA regulations shall be followed. 

2. Medicare cardholders 
3. People who meet the currently enforced Federal Transit 

Administration’s (FTA) definition of people with disabilities. At 
the time of the adoption of this policy, the definition is: “any 
individual who, by reason of illness, injury, age, congenital 
malfunction, or other incapacity or temporary or permanent 
disability (including any individual who is a wheelchair user or 
has semi-ambulatory capabilities), cannot use effectively, 
without special facilities, planning or design, mass 
transportation service or a mass transportation facility.” 

67



NOTES 
A. The local monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other local transit 

services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine. See 
Attachment A. 

B. The discount for the punch pass is based on an analysis of other local transit 
services within the Bay Area and what the VINE is currently using. See Attachment 
A. 

C. The Route 29 monthly pass multiplier is based on an analysis of other express 
route services within the Bay Area and what is currently being used by the Vine. 
See Attachment B. 

D. As of June 1, 2014 the regulatory minimum farebox recovery ratio is 16% for urban 
transit services and 10% for rural and ADA paratransit services. 

E. Vine offers reduced fares to senior citizens and disabled persons. The Vine honors 
the federal Medicare identification card, the California Department of Motor 
Vehicles disability ID card, the Regional Transit Connection Discount Card, or any 
other current identification card issued by another transit operator that is valid for 
the type of transportation service or discount requested; and when offering 
reduced fares to senior citizens, it also offers the same reduced fare to disabled 
patrons. 

68



CHAPTER 4 PASSENGER COMPLAINT & COMMENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
 

Section 4.1. Overview 
NVTA maintains a philosophy of providing exceptional customer service and 
responsiveness to the public. 

 
4.1.1 Complaints & Comments 

A. Complaints and comments from the public may be received 
electronically through email and the Vine/NVTA web site, prepaid 
comment cards available in English and Spanish on Vine vehicles, 
standard written correspondence, testimony at public meetings, 
and/or via telephone or in-person communication. 

B. NVTA’s transit operations contractor may also receive complaints or 
comments in one or more of the formats noted above 

C. When complaints are received, NVTA staff and/or contractor will 
acknowledge receipt of the complaint within 24 business hours from 
the time it is received. 

D. All complaints should be investigated and resolved within 5 business 
days. 

E. Complaining party shall be notified of the agency’s resolution of the 
complaint within 5 business days. NVTA’s contractor shall maintain 
documentation of all complaints received and their resolution and 
provide monthly written summaries to be included in the contractor’s 
monthly invoice to NVTA. 

F. NVTA’s contractor shall maintain documentation of all complaints 
received and their resolution and provide monthly written summaries 
to be included in the contractor’s monthly invoice to NVTA. 

G. NVTA will maintain a log at on the shared office drive available 
(H:\NCTPA\TRANSIT\03_Complaints & 
Suggestions)H:\NVTA\3000_Public Transit\03_Complaints & 
Suggestions  

H.G. )so that all NVTA personnel can review and record complaints. 
Additionally, NVTA utilizes HappyFox, an online software to receive, 
track, and respond to comments, complaints and suggestions. 

I.H. Copies of relevant comment cards received shall be shared with the 
agency’s contract operator with the originals retained in hard copy or 
electronic form. 

69



4.1.2 Requests for Reasonable Modification 
Public Transit passengers with disabilities may request reasonable 
modifications be made to accommodate their use of public transit. 
A. Requests should be made in written form and submitted to the 

Manager of Public Transit. 
B. Individuals requesting modifications shall describe what they need in 

order to use the service. 
C. Individuals requesting modifications are not required to use the term 

‘‘reasonable modification’’ when making a request. 
D. Whenever feasible, requests for modifications shall be made and 

determined in advance, before the transportation provider is 
expected to provide the modified service, for example, during the 
paratransit eligibility process, through customer service inquiries, or 
through NVTA’s complaint process. 

E. Where a request for modification cannot practicably be made and 
determined in advance (e.g., because of a condition or barrier at the 
destination of a paratransit or fixed route trip of which the individual 
with a disability was unaware until arriving), operating personnel shall 
make a determination of whether the modification should be provided 
at the time of the request. Operating personnel may consult with 
NVTA management before making a determination to grant or deny 
the request. 

F. Requests for modification of NVTA’s policies and practices may be 
denied only on one or more of the following grounds: 
(1) Granting the request would fundamentally alter the nature of 
NVTA’s services, programs, or activities; 
(2) Granting the request would create a direct threat to the health or 
safety of others; 
(3) Without the requested modification, the individual with a disability 
is able to fully use NVTA’s services, programs, or activities for their 
intended purpose. 

G. In determining whether to grant a requested modification, NVTA shall 
be guided by the provisions of Department of Transportation 49 CFR 
Part 37, § 37.169 Appendix E. 

70



CHAPTER 5 ADA PARATRANSIT POLICIES 
 

Section 5.1. Service Overview 
Section 5.2. NVTA Eligibility Standards In compliance with the American’s 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990 the Napa Valley Transportation 
Authority (NVTA) provides complementary paratransit service (Vine Go) to 
the Vine fixed route bus system. This service is available to all individuals 
deemed eligible that are making a trip with an origin and destination within 
three-quarters (¾) of a mile of a Vine fixed route corridor. Vine Go 
paratransit operates as a curb-to-curb service. 
Per the ADA regulations individuals falling into one or more of the below categories 
are eligible to receive complementary ADA paratransit service: 
Category 1: Any individual with a disability who is unable, as the result of a physical 
or mental impairment (including a vision impairment), and without the assistance 
of another individual (except the operator of a wheelchair lift or other boarding 
assistance device), to board, ride, or disembark from any vehicle on the fixed route 
system which is readily accessible to and usable individuals with disabilities. 
Category 2: Any individual with a disability who needs the assistance of a 
wheelchair lift or other boarding assistance device and is able, with such 
assistance, to board, ride and disembark from any fixed route vehicle which is 
readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities if the individual 
wants to travel on a route on the system during the hours of operation of the system 
at a time, or within a reasonable period of such time, when such a vehicle is not 
being used to provide designated public transportation on the route. 
Category 3: Any individual with a disability who has a specific impairment-related 
condition which prevents such individual from traveling to a boarding location or 
from a disembarking location on such system. 

• Under this condition an emphasis is placed on prevents. A condition 
which makes traveling to boarding location or from a disembarking location 
more difficult for a person with a specific impairment-related condition than 
for an individual who does not have the condition, but does not prevent the 
travel, is not a basis for eligibility. 
• Architectural barriers not under the control of the public entity 
providing fixed route service and environmental barriers (e.g., distance, 
terrain, weather) do not, standing alone, form a basis for eligibility under this 
paragraph. The interaction of such barriers with an individual's specific 
impairment-related condition may form a basis for eligibility under this 
standard, if the effect is to prevent the individual from traveling to a boarding 
location or from a disembarking location 

Section 5.3. Eligibility Determination Process 
Individuals wishing to apply for ADA paratransit service shall submit an application 
to NVTA and schedule an appointment with NVTA’s designated eligibility 
contractor. Applicants will complete 

71



an in-person or telephone evaluation performed by NVTA’s contractor before a 
determination of eligibility is made. All decisions regarding an applicant’s eligibility 
shall be rendered in written form within twenty-one (21) days of receiving the 
applicant’s determination form regardless of any follow up. 
Section 5.4. Eligibility Categories 
NVTA separates eligible individuals into three distinct categories: unconditional, 
conditional, and temporary. Unconditional eligibility is assigned to individuals who 
are unable to use fixed route transit under any circumstances. Conditional 
eligibility is assigned to individuals who are able to independently use fixed route 
transit under some circumstances. Those “circumstances” are determined at the 
time of an applicant’s evaluation and are then adhered to when scheduling rides. 
Temporary eligibility is assigned to individuals who experience a temporary loss of 
functional ability that prevents them from using fixed route service. Each eligibility 
category shall result in differing terms regarding the span of time in which an 
individual is certified to use ADA paratransit. Individuals deemed unconditional 
shall remain eligible indefinitely due to the fact most disabilities that would result in 
this type of categorization do not improve with time. Unconditional individuals will 
receive a letter every three (3) years to ensure the most up to date information is 
on record. Conditionally eligible individuals shall remain certified for a period of 
three (3) years. Prior to their expiration conditionally eligible individuals will be sent 
a letter asking to renew as well as a new application. The determination of eligibility 
may change during their renewal, should their disability either improved or 
deteriorated. Temporarily eligible individuals will also be sent a letter and 
application at the end of their term giving them the opportunity to renew should 
they feel that their condition still prevents them from riding fixed route transit. 
Section 5.5. Appeals Process 
If a paratransit applicant is deemed ineligible and does not agree with the 
determination they have the right to appeal the decision. To formally appeal a 
decision a letter must be submitted to NVTA within 60 days of receiving an eligibility 
determination letter. The letter shall be addressed to NVTA 625 Burnell St. Napa, 
CA 94559 to the attention of the Manger of Public Transit. Upon receiving the letter 
an appeals panel will be assembled to hear an applicant’s appeal. The applicant 
or someone they appoint to speak on their behalf shall be contacted and an in 
person meeting with the panel will be scheduled. The panel shall consist of a 
member of Napa County’s Paratransit Coordinating Council (PCC), a member of 
NVTA’s Evaluation Contractor’s evaluation staff, and the Manager of Public Transit 
or his/her designated staff member. The appeals panel will render a final written 
decision within thirty (30) days of hearing the appeal. Should the appeals panel 
not render a decision within the thirty (30) days after the completion of the appeals 
process, NVTA shall provide paratransit service to the applicant until a decision is 
rendered. Free transportation shall be provided to the appealing applicant and their 
personal care attendant (PCA) to the appeals hearing. 

72



Section 5.6. Visitors 
Complementary paratransit service is available to visitors. A visitor is defined as 
anyone coming from an area outside of the nine (9) Bay Area Counties. All visitors 
must submit a proof of eligibility as determined by the jurisdiction in which they 
formally reside prior to their use of the Vine Go system. In a case where an 
individual has no formal documentation of ADA eligibility, the individual is to 
provide documentation of residence outside of the Bay Area, and if the individual’s 
disability is no apparent, proof of disability. Visitors shall be able to use Vine Go 
for a total of twenty-one (21) days within a three hundred and sixty-five (365) day 
period. Should an individual need service beyond the twenty-one (21) total days 
they shall be required to apply for local certification. 
Section 5.7. Reservation and Scheduling 
Eligible individuals may schedule their trips as early as seven (7) days in advance 
or as late as the day before the intended trip. For clarification, the “day before” is 
not considered to be twenty-four (24) hours prior to the intended trip. A request 
for a morning trip can be made in the afternoon of the day before. Trips are 
schedule on a first come, first serve basis. No trips will be given priority over the 
other based on trip purpose or destination. Reservationist may negotiate an eligible 
individual’s requested pickup time up to one hour before or after the desired pickup 
time. Reservationists shall be available to schedule trips from 8:00AM to 6:00PM, 
Monday through Friday and 8:00AM to 5:00PM Saturday through Sunday. NVTA 
does not provide subscription service. 
Section 5.8. Hours of Operation and Service Area 
NVTA shall operate complementary paratransit service during the same days and 
hours that fixed route service operates. Thus, if an individual can travel from a 
given origin to a given destination on a particular fixed route at a certain time of 
day, a paratransit eligible person must also be able to travel from the same origin 
to that same destination on paratransit at that time of day. Because paratransit 
service is required to be available during the same hours and days as the fixed 
route system, and because not all fixed routes will necessarily be operating at a 
given time on a given day, the shape of the paratransit service area can be 
expected to change accordingly. For example, it is common for certain routes to 
not run late at night or on Sundays. Those routes, and their associated paratransit 
corridors, are not served with paratransit when the fixed route system is not running 
on them. 
Section 5.9. Fares 
NVTA shall set its fares for paratransit trips at twice that of a comparable fixed 
route trip. Eligible individuals shall pay their fare upon boarding. Personal care 
attendants (PCA) that are specifically identified in an eligible individual’s file ride 
for free. Should an eligible individual have a companion that is not their designated 
PCA, that individual shall be required to pay the same fare amount as the eligible 
individual they are travelling with. 

73



Section 5.10. Mobility Devices 
Vine and Vine Go transit vehicles are designed to accommodate most wheelchairs 
and mobility aids. NVTA defines a wheelchair as a mobility aid that belongs to any 
class of three or more wheeled devices, is manual or powered, usable indoors and/ 
or outdoors, and designed or modified for the an individual’s mobility impairments. 
The maximum amount that a lift on the fixed route system can safely accommodate 
is 600lbs (rider and mobility device combined). Some ramp equipped fixed route 
vehicles can accommodate 800lbs however there is no guarantee that those 
specific vehicles will be available for one’s trip. For safety reasons riders and their 
mobility device that have a combined weight of 600lbs or more are encouraged to 
use paratransit. The maximum the lifts on NVTA’s paratransit fleet can safely 
accommodate is 800lbs. If the combined weight of a rider and their mobility device 
is 800lbs or greater Vine Go cannot accommodate them safely and the rider will 
be directed to make other transportation arrangements. 
Section 5.11. Passenger Accompaniment 
NVTA guarantees any eligible paratransit user one travel companion. Additional 
persons accompanying eligible individuals are to be served on a space-available 
basis to prevent displacement of other ADA paratransit eligible individuals. NVTA 
does not limit who the companion may be; the companion may be a family 
member, friend, or business associate, etc. NVTA requires that the eligible 
individual reserve a space for the companion when reserving his or her own ride. 
A personal care attendant (PCA), someone designated or employed to assist the 
eligible individual, may always ride with the eligible individual. If there is a PCA on 
the trip, the eligible individual may still bring a companion, as well as additional 
companions on a space-available basis. To be considered as “accompanying” the 
eligible individual, a companion must have the same origin and destination points 
as the eligible individual. 

 
NVTA allows service animals to accompany paratransit users on all trips. A service 
animal is defined by the ADA as “any guide dog, signal dog, or other animal 
individually trained to work or perform tasks for an individual with a disability, 
including, but not limited to, guiding individuals with impaired vision, alerting 
individuals with impaired hearing to intruders or sounds, providing minimal 
protection or rescue work, pulling a wheelchair, or fetching dropped items.” 
Emotional support, therapy, comfort, or companion animals are not considered 
“service animals” as they have not been trained to perform a specific job or task 
.task. Operational staff may ask if an animal is a service animal or ask what tasks 
the animal has been trained to perform in cases where it is not obvious that an 
animal is a service animal. NVTA shall not require the exclusion of a service animal 
unless the animal is out of control and the animal's owner does not take effective 
action to control it or the animal poses a direct threat to the health or safety of 
others. NVTA does not limit the number of service animals accompanying a user 
as long as each animal meets the definition of a service animal and is kept under 
the control of the rider. 

74



Section 5.12. Passenger Assistance 
As defined in Section I of these policies NVTA’s ADA paratransit shall operate as 
a curb-to-curb service. Drivers will provide assistance beyond the curb on an as- 
needed basis. NVTA shall ask users upon requesting their ride to inform the 
reservationist if this aid is needed for their pickup and/or drop-off. Should a user 
not inform the reservationist or a barrier becomes present that was unknown 
creating the requirement of assistance from the driver, assistance shall not be 
denied. Although assistance beyond the curb shall be provided on a case by case 
basis it is NVTA policy that drivers are able to maintain “effective continuing 
control” of the vehicle. Effective continuing control is defined by the NVTA as the 
driver being able to maintain visual contact with the vehicle at all times in cases 
where a user needs assistance beyond the curb. Drivers are also prohibited to 
enter private residences or past the first exterior door of any other building even if 
visual contact with the vehicle can be maintained. 
Section 5.13. No-Shows 
A no-show is defined as a situation where a rider does not take a scheduled ride 
or cancels their trip an hour or less before their scheduled pickup time due to 
reasons within their control. Trips missed due to sudden illness, family emergency, 
or transit agency error or lateness considered outside of the rider’s control are not 
considered a “no-show”. A no-show often results in a wasted trip that could have 
otherwise been given to someone else. Due to critical nature of paratransit trips 
NVTA takes chronic no-shows very seriously. ADA regulations allow paratransit 
service to be suspended for a reasonable amount of time when a rider consistently 
does not appear for scheduled trips. Missing three (3) trips or 10% or more of a 
passenger’s total trips in a calendar month is considered chronic no-show 
behavior. If a rider presents chronic no-show behavior he or she will be provided 
with written notification of their impending suspension and the degree of their 
penalty. The penalties are described below: 

• 1st month – Passenger will receive a phone call and a letter to review 
the policy and rider expectations. 
• 2nd month – Seven (7) day suspension 
• 3rd month – Fourteen (14) day suspension 
• 4th month and after – increasing penalties by one (1) week up to one 
(1) month suspension. 
• Penalties will reset after a year period from the first warning letter. 

At any point that an individual receives a written warning or impending suspension 
notice they may appeal the suspension within sixty (60) days of receipt. The 
appeals panel will render a final written decision within thirty (30) days of receiving 
the appeal. 
Section 5.14. Pick-Ups 
NVTA requests that riders be ready for pick-up at their scheduled time. Drivers 
shall wait five (5) minutes past the scheduled pick-up time for a registrant to make 
an indication they are present and planning to make their trip. If a registrant does 
not show themselves or make a good faith effort they to inform the driver they are 

75



making their way to the vehicle the driver will depart and the registrant will be 
considered a no-show. This five (5) minute window shall commence from the 
scheduled time of pick-up, not when the vehicle arrives. If a driver arrives prior to 
the scheduled pick-up they cannot commence the countdown until the scheduled 
pick-up time. Should a driver arrive early there is no obligation for the registrant to 
board the vehicle. Although there is no obligation a registrant may elect to depart 
early, and the trip will be considered early. A trip is considered “on-time” when a 
vehicle arrives within thirty (30) minutes of the scheduled pick-up time. If the 
vehicle arrives outside of the thirty (30) minute window they are considered late. 
To ensure a high quality of service NVTA expects that 90% of pick-ups are either 
on-time (within the 30-minute window) or are early. 
Section 5.15. Denials and Missed Trips 
NVTA shall have no denials of service. NVTA’s operator shall make it a top priority 
to provide enough capacity on the system to meet demand. Missed trips are trips 
that are not completed due to agency error. They shall be defined as follows. 

• The vehicle arrives and leaves before the beginning of the pickup 
window without picking up the rider and without any indication from the rider 
that he or she no longer wants to make the trip. Note that a rider is not 
obligated to board until the beginning of the pickup window or—for transit 
agencies that have a 5-minute wait-time policy—from the start of the pickup 
window until 5 minutes have elapsed. 
• The vehicle does not wait the required time within the pickup window, 
there is no contact with the rider, and the vehicle departs without the rider. 
Note that if during the wait time the rider indicates he or she no longer wants 
to take the trip, this is typically recorded as a “cancel at the door.” 
• The vehicle arrives after the end of the pickup window and departs 
without picking up the rider (either because the rider is not there or declines 
to take the trip because it is now late). 
• The vehicle does not arrive at the pickup location. 

Section 5.16. Trip Length 
NVTA shall sample twenty (20) random weekday trips, five (5) Saturday trips, and 
three (3) Sunday trips on a monthly basis to ensure that travel times are 
comparable to the travel times an individual would have on a comparable fixed 
route trip. NVTA expects trips to be comparable 95% of the time. 
Section 5.17. Equivalent Service 
NVTA operates four on-demand shuttle services in the communities of Calistoga, 
St. Helena, Yountville, and American Canyon. These on-demand services shall 
operate as complementary ADA paratransit for all trips originating and ending 
within their respective service areas. To ensure equitable service NVTA shall 
ensure that response times, fare, geographic service area, hours/days of 
operation, restrictions, availability of information and reservation capability, and 
constraints on capacity or availability are equal between ADA and non-ADA eligible 
riders of each on-demand shuttle service. 

76



CHAPTER 6 CHARTER & SCHOOL BUS 
 

Section 6.1. Statement of Policy 
Consistent with federal regulations, NVTA shall not operate charter or school bus 
services except as permitted under CFR 49 - Part 604 and 49 CFR Part 605 

77



CHAPTER 7 SHARED VEHICLE PROGRAM 
 

Section 7.1. Statement of Policy 
The Shared Vehicle Program shall be expressly for 501(c)(3) organizations that 
serve the elderly and/or disabled. 

7.1.1 Participation 
Participating organizations must: 

A. Sign a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with NVTA; 
B. Identify a staff member or volunteer from their agency as a 

prospective driver 
C. Add driver on the borrowing agency’s workers’ compensation policy 
D. Have insurance for general Liability 
E. Have insurance for Hired & Non-Owned Auto Liability 
F. Name NVTA as an additional insured on the above listed insurance 

policies 
G. Provide proof that driver candidate is an employee or volunteer 

covered under that agency’s workers compensation insurance 
H. Schedule time to borrow a vehicle on an as available basis 
I. Pick up and return the vehicle 
J. Prepare and submit necessary trip paperwork on the use of the 

vehicle 
K. Replace the gasoline used at their expense 

7.1.2 NVTA Responsibilities 
A. NVTA must perform a Department of Justice background check on 

the driver candidates. 
B. NVTA shall provide driver training to driver candidates. 
C. Driver candidates must secure the appropriate license. 
D. Driver candidates must agree to undergo random drug testing. 
E. NVTA shall add drivers onto its vehicle insurance policy. 

78



CHAPTER 8 TAXI SCRIP 
 

Section 8.1. Statement of Policy 
NVTA provides a limited amount of subsidized taxi rides within the City of Napa 
as a lifeline service to supplement regular fixed-route transit. 
The NVTA Taxi Program shall be a lifeline service only for City of Napa residents 
over of the City of Napaage of 65 years of age or older or persons with disabilities 
travelling to destinations within the City of Napa. Napa residents that have been 
ADA Vine Go certified have presumptive eligibility in the Taxi program. 

8.1.1 Participation & Compliance 
8.1.1.1 Users 

A. Tipping with scrip is prohibited. 
B. Three books of scrip per month per client maximum. 
C. All scrip users must be enrolled and follow the rules of NVTA Taxi 

Program. 
D. All users must show Taxi Program ID with photo (or Taxi Program ID 

w/o photo and another Picture ID) every time they wish to pay with 
scrip. 

E. Use of Scrip may not exceed $12 per trip. 
F. Scrip expires 3 years from issuance. 
G. Taxi scrip is non-refundable or exchangeable. 
H. Only residents meeting the established program criteria are eligible 

to enroll. 
I. All program applicants must complete a Taxi Scrip application. 

Applications may take up to 21 days to process. 
8.1.1.2 Agencies 

A. Agencies wishing to have their clients participate in the NVTA taxi 
Program must direct their clients to NVTA to enroll and follow the 
same rules as individual participants. 

B. Agencies distributing scrip must record transactions in on-line data 
base. 

8.1.1.3 Taxi Company’s 
A. Taxis may wait up to 5 minutes for passengers. 
B. Taxi drivers may not provide change for taxi scrip. 
C. Taxi companies are required to show complete street addresses for 

all trips. 
D. NVTA shall only be billed and will only pay the exact meter rate for 

trips. 
E. Drivers may not give change for rides paid by scrip, accept the 

balance of scrip as a tip, or wait for a passenger with the meter 
running in excess of 5 minutes. 

79



F. Any taxi operator with a current, valid City of Napa Taxi operator 
license may participate in the taxi program. Drivers are required to 
use NVTA trip sheet and check required passenger ID(s). 

G. In order to receive compensation for rides provided, taxi operators 
must submit NVTA required invoicing forms and driver trip sheets, 
remit collected taxi scrip, and otherwise operate within the program 
general policies. 

80



CHAPTER 9 PASSENGER POLICIES 
 

Section 9.1. Statement of Policy 
NVTA is committed to providing a safe, enjoyable experience for all passengers. 

Section 9.2. Passenger Code of Conduct 
To keep Vine Transit Services enjoyable for all, the following rules apply: 

A. Smoking: NVTA prohibits smoking on all vehicles and at all transit facilities. 
The no smoking rule applies to all tobacco and cannabis products, including 
the use of e-cigarettes and vaporizers. 

B. Eating: Eating is not allowed on any transit vehicle with the exclusion of 
snack bars. 

C.  Drinking: Drinking is allowed on buses if the liquid is in a closed container 
like a bottle or thermos. Cups with lids are not allowed unless it is tight fitting. 
Alcoholic beverages are strictly forbidden on transit vehicles, at transit 
facilities, and Transit stops. 

D. Entertainment Devices: Playing videos, games, and/or music without 
headphones is not allowed on Vine buses. Please keep headphone volume 
respectable. 

E. Littering: All trash shall be placed in a designated trashcan on all vehicles 
and at alltrashcans located at select bus stops. 

F.  Vandalism: Causing damage in any way to Vine property is strictly 
prohibited. Prohibited actions include, but are not limited to, marking, 
etching, and cutting. 

G. Obscene Language or Behavior: Using language or actions that can be 
interpreted as abusive, threating, or rude to fellow riders or transit staff is 
not allowed. 

H. Animals: No animals, except properly documented service animals are 
allowed on board. Service animals must ride at their owner’s feet or on their 
lap. Animals are not permitted on seats. Non-service animals can be 
brought on board if they are in a secure cage. 

I. Hazardous Materials: Hazardous Materials are strictly prohibited on Vine 
buses. These include, but are not limited to, corrosive material, flammable 
items, car batteries, materials emitting noxious odors, human or animal 
waste, etc. 

J. Weapons: Weapons of any kind are strictly prohibited on Vine vehicles and 
at any transit facility. 

K. Carry-On Items: Riders may bring luggage, shopping bags, or other non- 
hazardous material on the bus as long as the rider can easily handle and 
secure the items on or near their body. 

L. Bikes on Buses: All buses (except VineGo) are have bike racks. 
Availability of bike racks is on a first-come, first- served basis. Bicyclists are 
responsible for loading, securing and unloading their bicycles. Bus drivers 
will not assist. Bikes are only permitted inside the bus on buses retrofitted 

81



with interior bike racks or on the last trip of the day. Small scooters, including 
electric, are permitted inside the bus if they can be secured by the rider. 

M. Wheelchairs, Scooters and other Mobility Aids: The Vine allows all 
mobility devices on its fixed route vehicles as long as rider can maneuver it 
onto the vehicle and have it properly secured. VineGo vehicles with a lift 
can only accept a device and rider who weigh less than 600 pounds 
combined. 

N. Securing Mobility Devices: All Wheelchairs and Scooters must be 
secured. Passengers may transfer to a seat, or if they remain using the 
wheelchair or scooter, the driver will also recommend that they are secured 
with an over shoulder strap. 

O. Walkers: The driver will secure walkers inside the bus. 
P. Oxygen Units: Portable oxygen units are preferred. Large oxygen 

cylinders must be transported in a holder on wheels or attached firmly to a 
manual wheelchair. 

Q. Boarding by the Wheelchair Ramp: Passengers who prefer to board the 
bus using the ramp should ask the driver to assist them. 

 
9.2.1 Suspendible Offences 

A. The following acts may result in immediate and permanent suspension 
and possible criminal prosecution: 

• Physical abuse or causing physical injury to another rider or driver 
• Purposeful destruction or vandalism of Vine property. 

B. For violating any other codes of conduct the following will be enforced: 
• One (1) violation will result in a verbal warning 
• Two (2) violations will result in a written warning. 
• Three (3) or more violations will result in suspension of service for a 

minimum of 30 days. 
C. Riders may appeal warnings or suspensions. An appeal can be made 

in writing within 60 days of the incident in question. Written appeals 
should be mailed to 625 Burnell St Napa, CA 94559. Riders may also 
file an appeal in person at the Transit Center or call the main 
administrative line at (707) 259-8631. Riders may also submit their 
requests for an appeal through the Vine “Contact Us” portal on the 
vinetransit.com. 
• Appeals will be reviewed and considered by the Executive Director 

and the residing Chair of the Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
Board of Directors. A joint decision on maintaining the ban or 
removing it will be given within ten (10) days of receipt. 

82



CHAPTER 10 VEHICLE ACCIDENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES 
 

Section 10.1. Statement of Policy 
NVTA considers passenger safety the highest priority in its public transit services. 
All vehicle incidents and accidents involving injury shall be reported to NVTA staff 
by the agency’s contractor within 24 hours of occurrence. In the event of serious 
injury, NVTA staff should be notified immediately 
Within 72 hours NVTA’s contractor shall provide the agency complete 
documentation of all accidents/incidents including, but not limited to, accident 
investigation forms, supervisor’s notes, photographs and/or video of vehicle(s) and 
accident scene. 
A summary of all accidents and incidents shall be provided by operations 
contractor in each monthly billing invoice. 
The NVTA Executive Director shall be notified of any accident or incident in which 
medical care was provided at the scene and/or subjects were transported to a 
medical facility. 

83



CHAPTER 11 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR 
 

Section 11.1. Statement of Policy 
Maintaining the agency’s transit assets in a state of good repair is essential for 
delivering safe and reliable transit service. 
The agency will maintain an asset management database to log the value and 
condition of capital assets. 
In developing transit budgets and short and long range transit plans, the agency 
shall prioritize the replacement and/or repair and refurbishment of capital assets to 
maintain a state of good repair. 
The agency contractor will schedule maintenance on intervals that support system 
wide state of good repair and maintain records of service and maintenance for 
vehicles and equipment for which they are contractually responsible to maintain. 
The agency will schedule maintenance on intervals that support system wide state 
of good repair and maintain records of service and maintenance for those items 
not operated by contractor. 

84



CHAPTER 12 SAFETY & SECURITY 
Section 12.1. Statement of Policy 
NVTA’s contract transit provider shall maintain, implement and annually update a 
Safety and Security Management Plan. 

85



CHAPTER 13 BUS STOP PLACEMENT 
 

Section 13.1. Statement of Policy 
 

The recommended stop spacing guidelines are based upon the best practices 
research and staff knowledge of local conditions. The goal is to balance the 
needs of passengers and the operator. While a short distance between stops 
means a shorter walk for customers, the result is a longer ride for them in the 
end. The more opportunities for boarding and alighting along a route results in 
longer trips because of the time it takes for the bus to decelerate, come to a 
complete stop, collect fares from passengers, wait for the passengers to sit 
down, and then accelerate and merge into traffic. 

 
A. Local Route 
Local stop spacing is broken down into two categories, urban and 
suburban. Urban is relegated to Downtown defined as First through Fifth 
Street and Main to Franklin Street and Suburban is the rest of the City of 
Napa. For the Urban service type, the average distance between stops is 
1,000ft apart and for Suburban the average is 1,500ft. 
B. Regional Route 
On the Routes 10 and 11 there is a wide range of stop distances due to 
the different land uses and densities along these two routes. The 
recommended average distance is 4,500 ft. The idea is that within 
incorporated areas the stops on average can be 1,500ft, in alignment with 
Suburban standards, and then in rural areas, particularly along the 
Route10, the stops can be further apart, closer to 20,000 ft. 

 
 

Type of NVTA Service Range Average 
Local 

- Urban 
- Suburban 

 
500 to 1,500 ft 
1,000 to 2,000 ft 

 
1,000 ft 
1,500 ft 

 
Regional 

 
1,500 to 20,000 ft 

 
4,500 ft 

 
Express 

 
Major Employment 
Center 

 
25,000 ft 

 

The Routes 10 and 11 share an alignment between Napa Valley College 
and the Redwood Park and Ride. There may be opportunities to eliminate 
some duplicative stops along this shared alignment especially along 

86



Soscol Ave near the Soscol Gateway Transit Center (SGTC) where there 
are stops less than 1,500 ft from the SGTC that predate the construction 
of the SGTC. 

 
C. Express Routes 

 
The recommendation for stops to be located at a major employment 
center with an average distance of 25,000 ft apart is similar to the current 
spacing along the Routes 21 and 29. The As outlined in the Express Bus 
Corridor Study completed by NVTA in 2017 recommends the elimination 
of the Route 21 stop at Corporate Drive was eliminated due to low 
boarding at that stop. The elimination of this stop wil, whichl results in the 
modification of the route alignment between the Napa Valley College and 
the Devlin Road/Airport Blvd stop . These changes willand a decrease 
the travel time on the Route 21. 

 
Minimal changes are necessary to the stop spacing on the Route 29. As 
additionally outlined in detail in the Express Bus Corridor Study, in order to 
speed up the Route 29 the stop at the Soscol Gateway Transit Center was 
moved on October 30, 2022 to the Imola Park and Ride in order to there is a 
need to make efficiency improvements to existing stops and to move 
stopsbe closer to the main Highway 29 corridor. If stops are added in the 
future, the stops should only be at major employment centers. 
 

Section 13.2. Process for Implementing Bus Stop Spacing 
Recommendations 

A. Evaluate the Current Distance Between Bus Stops Against 
Spacing Guidelines 
The next steps is to evaluate the current distance between bus stops 
against spacing guideline and either leave the stop unchanged, insert an 
additional stop, consolidate the stop or eliminate a stop as follows: 

 
Unchanged - if the stop meets the spacing interval 

 

Insert Additional Stop – spacing greater than the maximum recommended 
interval 

 
Consolidate Stop 

If spacing is less than interval then evaluate both stops 
 

One stop is either a hub or has a shelter, evaluate the other 
stop 

 

 
 
 

Eliminate Stop 

If the other stop meets the seven requirements of the 
Stop Consolidation Checklist then move forward with 
consolidation. 

87



If spacing is less than interval then evaluate both stops 

88



Neither stop is a hub or has a shelter, evaluate the stop with the 
lower ridership 

 
If the other stop meets the six requirements of the Stop 
Elimination Checklist the move forward with elimination. 

 
 

B. Stop Elimination Checklist 
In order to NVTA to eliminate stop the answer to the following questions 
needs to be Yes. 

 
Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
The adjacent stops left unaltered adhere to the prescribed 
spacing requirements for their service area. 

 

Adjacent stops are designed accordingly to absorb additional 
ridership. 

 

The stops does not provide direct access to connecting 
transit services, or if it does there are stops further along the 
route that will provide the same connections. 

 

The stop being removed does not meet ADA guidelines, or 
both adjacent stops meet ADA guidelines. 

 

The stops does not serve existing community resources such 
as schools, hospitals, senior center, recreation centers, and 
locations providing public service. 

 

 
C. Stop Consolidation Checklist 
In order to NVTA to eliminate stop the answer to the following questions 
needs to be Yes. 

 
Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
The new stops location has adequate pedestrian access, 
such as direct sidewalk connections and safe pedestrian 
crossings 

 

The new stop location adheres to the spacing requirements 
with adjacent stops. 

 

The new location meets ADA guidelines or can be 
reasonably modified to meet guidelines. 

 

If either stop being considered for consolidation is a transfer 
stop, existing transfer opportunities at the new stops location 
are possible within two or fewer street crossings or at another 
sop location along the line. 

 

The stops being considered will not impact more than 20% of 
the entire route’s daily ridership 

 

The stops being considered for consolidation do not directly 
serve existing community resources such as schools, 

 

89



Criteria to Eliminate Yes/No 
hospitals, senior centers, and locations providing public 
services. 

 

The new location will improve or maintain running times.  
 
 

Section 13.3. Adding a Shelter 
In order to be considered as a potential location for a bus shelter, the stop in 
question must obtain a minimum of: 

• 20 boarding’s per average weekday on regional or express Routes 
• 10 boarding’s per average weekday on local routes 

Stops which do not meet these minimum ridership requirements will not be 
considered for further analysis. 

• Further analysis involves the following factors ridership, exposure, 
transfer, transit frequency, high priority community resources, and the 
ability to remain ADA accessible. 

Section 13.4. Ongoing Monitoring and Corrective Action 
Existing services should be monitored annually to see if additional shelters are 
necessary. All stops added to new service must adhere to the recommended Spacing 
Guidelines for local, regional and express bus service outlined in this document. 

 
CHAPTER 14 CONTRACTOR RELATIONS & OVERSIGHT 

 
Section 14.1. Overview 
The agency engages a variety of contractors for the provision of single, periodic 
and/or on-going services. Initial Contractor solicitation and selection shall be 
conducted as outlined in section Chapter 5: Contracts and Procurement. 
During the duration of any contract NVTA personnel shall carry out relations with 
the vendor commensurate with the highest standards of professional and ethical 
conduct. Oversight and reporting of contract compliance shall be consistent with 
all applicable state and federal laws and consistent with the requirements set forth 
in related to the related proposal and contract documents. 
The agency contracts for the operation of transit services. Agency staff shall 
monitor contractor performance consistent with all FTA requirements for 3rd Party 
Oversight. In addition, certain performance standards are established as part of 
the contract award with the selected vendor. These metrics shall be monitored 
regularly utilizing a mutually agreed methodology. 

90



CHAPTER 15 TITLE VI 
 

Section 15.1. Statement of Policy 
To ensure compliance of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the agency is 
committed to providing transit services to individuals of diverse cultural and 
economic backgrounds and, to the maximum extent practicable, removing barriers 
to the use of public transit. To this end, the agency shall ensure: 
A. All Vine literature provided to the public is produced in English and Spanish 
B. All public postings related to service policies and operations are produced 

in English and Spanish 
C. Bus schedules have adequate information in Spanish to allow successful 

comprehension of the information presented 
D. The Vine website has translation options consistent with industry standards 
E. The Vine website will clearly identify Title VI complaint procedures 
F. All buses maintain up-to-date Title VI notifications 

91



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Vine Transit Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the NVTA Board receive the second quarter FY 2022-23 Vine Transit update. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

This report summarizes the Vine’s operational performance during the second quarter for 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23, covering the period October 1 to December 31, 2022. The 
board memo compares the second quarter of FY 2023 to the second quarter of FY 2019-
2020 to provide some context on how ridership compares to pre-COVID ridership levels, 
as well as comparing to the prior quarter of the current fiscal year to provide insight to 
more recent ridership trends. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Is there a Fiscal Impact?  No 

92



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Agenda Item 10.1 

Continued From: New  
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      NVTA Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY: Rebecca Schenck, Program Manager – Public Transit 

(707) 259-8636 / Email: rschenck@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Vine Transit Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the second quarter 
FY 2022-23 Vine Transit update. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 
 
None 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Future Service Changes  
 
Since the previous Vine Transit Update provided to the Board in November, no new 
schedules have been implemented. The next service changes are planned for June to 
correspond with the end of the school year. Some changes being considered are:  
 

• Eliminating the American Canyon and St. Helena fixed route school bus runs 
during the summer school break. 

• Eliminating or changing the timepoints the Route W Loop 2 (counterclockwise 
direction). 

• Providing all day service on Route E. 
• Improving timepoints on Routes 10, 11, 11X and 29. 

 
 
 
 
 

93

mailto:rschenck@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 10.1 
February 15, 2023                        Page 2 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
As part of an effort to continue to provide stellar transit service and to draw riders back, 
NVTA staff has been busy problem solving a number of issues associated with bus 
replacements, electric fleet transition and implementation of new and or replacement of 
technology and equipment:  These include: 
 

Bus Electrification:  The fifth BYD electric bus arrived in Napa on Monday January 9, 
2023.  The new bus is retrofitted with a custom driver barrier. A minor design flaw 
was discovered that prevents accessing certain farebox components and the BYD 
engineering team is working on a solution.  This design flaw does not prevent access 
to the vault which contains the fares, however, some of the essential components are 
difficult to access.  

 
Staff is still working on commissioning the charging station in the existing Jackson 
Street maintenance yard, but the system is currently malfunctioning, and our 
contractor is currently troubleshooting the issues.   The Town of Yountville chargers 
are experiencing issues with the cooling systems and are awaiting maintenance. The 
St. Helena chargers will be commissioned on February 10 and should be operational 
by the February Board meeting. Two additional chargers will be installed on City of 
American Canyon property pending direction from City staff on the location of the 
chargers. These chargers will work with the two Proterra electric buses. 

 
Ride The Vine:  The On-Demand App is now available for users.  The Vine suite of 
services includes American Canyon Transit, St. Helena Butterfly, the Yountville Bee 
Line, City of Napa On-Demand service, and the Calistoga Shuttle uses an Automated 
Demand-Response Dispatching software system. To book on-demand rides, 
passengers have the option to use the Ride the Vine App which is available at the 
Apple App or Google Play stores..  
 
Faulty Routers and Computer Aided Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle Locator: All Vine 
Transit fixed route buses are equipped with digital routers. Issues associated with the 
routers were uncovered when the new Computer-Aided Dispatch/Automatic Vehicle 
Locator (CAD/AVL) system was installed by GMV Syncromatics.  Key were issues with 
the geographic positioning system (GPS) bus tracking on the interactive map on the 
Vine Transit website and onboard Wi-Fi for passengers. Staff is currently working 
through all of the suggestions made by the Digi representative to ensure all the routers 
on the buses properly function including changes in software, changes in hardware 
wiring and the purchase of a secondary set of sim cards from AT&T to provide back-
up when the Verizon network is unavailable. 
 
Automatic Passenger Counters:  All Vine Transit fixed route buses are equipped with 
Automated Passenger Counters (APCs). APCs are electronic devices installed above 
the doors of the buses that count boardings and alightings and identify the specific stop 
locations. NVTA executed an amendment to the UTA contract in September to 
transition ridership data from a statistical software, called SPSS, to a web-based 
platform. The old software, SPSS, was outdated and required downloading specialized 

94



Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 10.1 
February 15, 2023                        Page 3 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

software and receiving specific training.   The data is now hosted on a web-based 
platform that is significantly easier to use. 
 

 
Vine Transit Performance 
 
The Tables 1-4 compare ridership across different services in the second quarter of Fiscal 
Year 2022-23 (October 2022 to December 2022) with the same period in Fiscal Year 
2019-2020 (October 2019 to December 2019) to gain an understanding of where current 
Vine ridership stands in relationship to ridership numbers prior to the COVID-19 
Pandemic. The second quarter FY 2020 was the last time that ridership was not adversely 
impacted by COVID-19.  
 
Table 1 shows that the eight fixed routes in the City of Napa in the second quarter of FY 
2020 carried 91,372 riders compared to the 27,390 riders on the four fixed routes 
available in FY 2023, a decrease of 70.02%. The on-demand service operating in the City 
of Napa served 4,275 riders during the first quarter of FY 2023 so the overall decrease in 
ridership in the City of Napa was 65.34%. 
 
Table 1: City of Napa - Comparing Q2 of FY20 & FY23 

 
FY 19/20 FY 22/23 % Difference Numerical Difference 

Napa Local On-
Demand 

 
0 

 
4,275 

 
N/A 

 
4,275 

Fixed Route 91,372 27,390 -70.02% -63,982 
Total 91,372 34,692 -65.34% -59,707 

 
Overall, Table 2 shows that the regional routes have recovered faster than the local City 
of Napa routes. There was a 35.29% drop in ridership on the regional routes from FY 20 
to FY 23. The Route 10 is performing the best at only 15.78% below pre pandemic 
ridership levels. The fact that the revenue hours and the type of service remain relatively 
unchanged on the regional routes over the three-year period has helped these routes 
recover more quickly.  
 
Table 2: Routes 10, 11, 11X, 21 and 29 Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY20 & FY23 

  FY 19/20 FY 22/23 % Difference Numerical Difference 

Route 10 39,713 33,446 -15.78% -6,267 
Route 11 50,797 30,504 -39.95% -20,293 
Route 11X  1,379 1,009 -26.82% -370 
Route 21 9,669 3,906 -59.60% -5,763 
Route 29 18,326 8,717 -52.43% -9,609 
Total 119,884 77,582 -35.29% -42,302 

 

95



Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 10.1 
February 15, 2023       Page 4 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 3 on the next page indicates that ridership recovery on the community shuttle varies 
greatly by community. American Canyon Transit FY 2023 ridership is 28.35% below that 
in FY 2020. Meanwhile the Yountville ridership in FY 2023 is 74.91% down from FY 2020. 
Part of the reason that Yountville ridership remains depressed is that there was no service 
to the Yountville Veterans Home until November 1, 2022.  

Table 3: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q2 of FY20 & FY23 

FY 19/20 FY 22/23 % Difference Numerical Difference 
Calistoga Shuttle 5,322 3,679 -30.87% -1,643
St. Helena Shuttle 3,485 1,862 -46.57% -1,623
Yountville Trolley 3,686 925 -74.91% -2,761
American Canyon 
Transit 7,118 5,100 -28.35% -2,018

Total 19,611 11,566 -41.02% -8,045

VineGo Ridership, as shown in Table 4, also remains low at approximately half (49.21%) 
of prepandemic levels. It makes sense that VineGo ridership has been slow to return 
given that those eligible for VineGo tend to be the most vulnerable to COVID-19.  

Table 4: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q2 of FY20 & FY23 

FY 19/20 FY 22/23 % Difference Numerical Difference 
VineGo 6,503 3,303 -49.21% -3,200

While Vine ridership has not rebounded to pre-pandemic levels, there is still a reason to 
be optimistic as the system is showing year over year system ridership gains in each 
successive year from the original ridership slump that occurred in the 3rd quarter of FY 
2019-20.  Ridership gains, however, have not been consistent among all routes.   

Tables 5- 7, compare the first quarter of FY 2022-23 (July 2022 – September 2022) to the 
second quarter of FY 2022-23 to provide additional recent context on ridership. All routes 
experienced declines in ridership, however, this is to be expected as ridership tends to 
decline in the colder winter months (October – December) compared to the warmer 
summer months of July – September. Additionally, there are more holidays during the 
second quarter of the Fiscal Year that result in lower demand for transit services on local 
routes.  

Table 5 City of Napa Ridership – Comparing Q1 of FY23 & Q2 of FY23 

Q1 FY 23 Q2 FY 23 % Difference Numerical Difference 
Napa Local On-
Demand 4,605 4,275 -7.17% -330

96



Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 10.1 
February 15, 2023                        Page 5 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Route N  16,229 16,206 -0.14% -23 
Route S  4,074 3,797 -6.80% -277 
Route W  8,940 6,646 -25.66% -2,294 
Route E  844 741 -12.20% -103 
Total 34,692 31,665 -8.73% -3,027 

Ridership decreased slightly overall compared to the prior quarter on almost all regional 
and express routes by 5.67% as seen in Table 6. As previously mentioned, these trends 
aren’t surprising given the seasonal variation ridership experiences throughout the year. 
 
 
Table 6: Routes 10, 11,11x, 21 & 29 Ridership – Comparing Q1 of FY23 & Q2 of FY23 

  Q1 FY 23 Q2 FY 23 % Difference Numerical Difference 

Route 10 38,832 33,446 -13.87% -5,386 
Route 11 29,861 30,504 2.15% 643 
Route 11X  1,082 1,009 -6.75% -73 
Route 21 3,782 3,906 3.28% 124 
Route 29 8,688 8,717 0.33% 29 
Total 82,245 77,582 -5.67% -4,663 

 
For the community shuttles, ridership slightly increased overall compared to the first 
quarter of the current fiscal year as seen in Table 7, however, most of that increase is 
driven by the approximate 21% increase on the St. Helena Shuttle and by American 
Canyon Transit, which has ridership that is largely driven by students. 
 
Table 7: Community Shuttles– Comparing Q1 of FY23 & Q2 of FY23 

 
Q1 FY 23 Q2 FY 23 % Difference Numerical Difference 

Calistoga Shuttle 3,994 3,679 -7.89% -315 
St. Helena Shuttle 1,544 1,862 20.60% 318 
Yountville Trolley 1,308 925 -29.28% -383 
American Canyon 
Transit 4,477 5,100 13.92% 623 

Total 11,323 11,566 2.15% 243 
 
VineGo ridership continues to rebound as evidenced by the increase of 15.13% when 
compared to the previous quarter of the current fiscal year as seen in Table 8. NVTA has 
been experiencing an uptick in VineGo applications and renewals since April 2022 when 
several senior programs and activities around the valley resumed.  
 
 
 

97



Napa Valley Transportation Authority  Agenda Item 10.1 
February 15, 2023       Page 6 of 6 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Table 8: VineGo Ridership – Comparing Q1 of FY23 & Q2 of FY23 

Q1 FY 23 Q2 FY 23 % Difference Numerical Difference 

VineGo 2,793 3,303 18.26% 510 

Finally, Table 9 shows the on-time performance for Vine fixed route services. NVTA’s 
acceptable threshold for on-time performance is 90% (using the following thresholds:  0 
minute early and 5 minutes late).  Given the shortage of drivers and associated system 
challenges, most routes are showing low on-time performance and with the June 
schedule change NVTA will work on minimizing the percentage of early departures by 
tightening up the schedule. For Route W Loop 2 and Route E, staff believes the low on-
time performance of those routes is due to a data error in the backend scheduling 
program. Staff is currently working with its CAD/AVL provider to identify and remedy the 
potential causes of inaccurate on-time performance data. 

Table 9: On-Time Performance for Q2 of FY23 
On-Time Early Late 

Route N 63.11% 12.61% 24.28% 
Route S 36.72% 4.69% 58.59% 
Route W (Loop 1) 63.32% 24.86% 11.82% 

Route W (Loop 2) Schedule Data 
not Accurate 

Schedule Data 
not Accurate 

Schedule Data 
not Accurate 

Route E Schedule Data 
not Accurate 

Schedule Data 
not Accurate 

Schedule Data 
not Accurate 

Route 10 57.49% 15.07% 27.44% 
Route 11 59.83% 9.08% 31.10% 
Route 11X 57.63% 19.81% 22.56% 
Route 21 58.26% 29.07% 12.66% 
Route 29 44.49% 25.29% 30.21% 

ATTACHMENT(S) 

None 

98



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Board Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
COVER MEMO 
______________________________________________________________________ 

SUBJECT 

Federal and State Legislative Update 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors and the State 
Legislative update prepared by Platinum Advisors. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The attached memo from Platinum Advisor/K&L Gates summarize recent federal and 
state legislative activities respectively.     

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

99



February 15, 2023 
NVTA Board Agenda Item 10.2 

Continued From: New 
Action Requested:  INFORMATION 

 
 

NAPA VALLEY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
Board Agenda Memo 
______________________________________________________________________ 

TO:      Board of Directors 

FROM:     Kate Miller, Executive Director 
REPORT BY:  Kate Miller, Executive Director  

(707) 259-8634 / Email: kmiller@nvta.ca.gov 

SUBJECT: Federal and State Legislative Update 
______________________________________________________________________ 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board receive the Federal 
Legislative update prepared by K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors (Attachment 1), the 
State Update prepared by Platinum Advisors (Attachment 2). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Federal Update:  
After a somewhat lengthy process to elect a speaker, the House leadership have 
assigned committee leadership roles.  Same Graves (R-MO) and Rick Larson (D-WA) will 
serve as the Chairman and Ranking Member of the Transportation and Infrastructure 
Committee; and the Highways and Transit Subcommittee will be chaired by Rick Crawford 
(R-AR). 
 
Senator Maria Cantwell (D-WA) will continue to chair the Senate Committee on 
Commerce, Science & Transportation and Senator Roger Wicker (R-MS) will serve as 
the Ranking Member.  Other key changes in the Senate is the appointment of Senator 
Patty Murray (D-WA) who will assume the Appropriations Committee Chair.  
 
The Biden Administration released the U.S. National Blueprint for Transportation 
Decarbonization which was developed by the Departments of Energy, Transportation, 
Housing, and Urban Development.  The Blueprint is a road map for reduction carbon 
emissions to meet the President’s 2035 objective for clean energy. 
 
 
 
 

100

mailto:kmiller@nvta.ca.gov


Napa Valley Transportation Authority              Agenda Item 10.2 
February 15, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
State Update 
 
The release of the Governor’s budget and projected $22.5 billion deficit has prompted the 
LAO to recommend reducing one-time and temporary spending to address what it feels 
will be a much larger deficit than was projected by the administration. The LAO has 
projected the proposed spending plan will result in $4-$9 billion in future year deficits.   
 
The Governor’s budget proposal include deep cuts to the Highway User Tax Account 
(HUTA) and Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) allocations.  Annual 
revenues from these two programs that flow into the county is roughly $8.4 million. 
 
   
ATTACHMENTS 
 
(1) January 30, 2023 Federal Update (K&L Gates and Platinum Advisors) 
(2) January 30, 2023 State Update (Platinum Advisors) 

 

101



    
 

 
   

 

ATTACHMENT 1 
NVTA AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

February 15, 2023 
 

 M E M O  
 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 

Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) 

FROM: Jordan Cooper, K&L Gates 
Jess Aune, Platinum Advisors 

DATE: January 30, 2023 

RE: January Monthly Report  

State of Play and Congressional Update 
 
The start of the 118th Congressional session in the Republican-controlled House of 
Representatives was anything but ordinary. A normally mundane sequence of rules and 
leadership votes were dragged out, as Republicans struggled to elect a Speaker day after 
day. After a series of fourteen attempts, Kevin McCarthy (R-CA) was finally elected by 
the full chamber as Speaker of the House. Meanwhile, Democrats had a less stressful 
time transitioning into the new session, efficiently electing Hakeem Jeffries (D-NY) to 
serve as Minority Leader. Thus far, the two party leaders seem to be getting along better 
than McCarthy and Jeffries’ predecessor, Speaker Nancy Pelosi.  
 
Additionally, House Republicans passed a rules package that will govern legislative 
activity for the next two years. However, in order to obtain the vote threshold necessary 
to become Speaker, McCarthy was forced to make several concessions to the 
conservative wing of his party, which could potentially affect the 118th Congress’ ability 
to get legislation to the President. The new rules package covers a wide range of issues 
that will influence legislating in the 118th session. One of the most important, which will 
likely bring most spending related measures to a standstill is Cut-As-You-Go  
(CUTGO).  Under CUTGO, bills cannot increase mandatory spending over the 5 or 10 
year budget windows, even if they are offset. Other new rules ban the use of the budget 
reconciliation process to pass legislation that would result in net direct spending, and 
require the Congressional Budget Office to provide estimates of the economic impact of 
major legislation. The rules package also bars general appropriations bills from increasing 
the amount provided for an unauthorized spending item. These measures may be cause  
for House-passed bills to effectively die upon arrival in the Senate. Republicans also 
promptly repealed the proxy voting that Democrats instituted during COVID and kept in 
place through the end of the 117th Congress, as well as created a new select committee 
to investigate competition between the U.S. and China.  
 
In the House, most of the progress in the 118th Congress to date has been limited to 
setting up the new committee membership rosters. Although the full rosters are still being 

102



 2  
  
 

sorted out, the committee leadership has already been announced. Of note in the 
transportation sector, Sam Graves (R-MO) and Rick Larsen (D-WA) will serve as the 
Chairman and Ranking Member of the Transportation and Infrastructure Committee. The 
T&I Subcommittees will be chaired by the following Members:  

• Aviation: Garret Graves (R-LA)  
• Coast Guard and Maritime Transportation: Daniel Webster (R-FL)  
• Economic Development, Public Buildings and Emergency Management: Scott 

Perry (R-PA)  
• Highways and Transit: Rick Crawford (R-AR)  
• Railroads, Pipelines, and Hazardous Materials: Troy Nehls (R-TX)  
• Water Resources and Environment: David Rouzer (R-NC)  

 
Leadership on other committees of importance includes:  

• Agriculture: Glenn Thompson (R-PA), David Scott (D-GA)  
• Appropriations: Kay Granger (R-TX), Rosa DeLauro (D-CT) 

o THUD Subcommittee: Tom Cole (R-OK), TBD 
• Energy and Commerce: Cathy McMorris Rodgers (R-WA), Frank Pallone (D-NJ) 
• Natural Resources: Bruce Westerman (R-AR), Raúl Grijalva (D-AZ) 
• Science, Space, and Technology: Frank Lucas (R-OK), Zoe Lofgren (D-CA) 

 
And now to the Senate, which remains relatively unchanged from the previous Congress. 
There are a few new faces and some turnover with committee leadership, however the 
Republican and Democrat party leaders remain mostly the same. The only major change 
in the transportation arena is the appointment of Ted Cruz (R-TX) to the Ranking Member 
position on the Senate Committee on Commerce, Science, and Transportation. Patty 
Murray (D-WA) takes over as the Appropriations Chair for the retired Patrick Leahy (D-
VA), while Susan Collins (R-ME) takes over the Appropriations Ranking Member position. 
Senate Democrats still control the agenda in the upper chamber and will serve as a foil 
to anything the Republican-led House seeks to push through.  
 
It is unclear how much this Congress will be able to accomplish given the divided 
chambers and tight majorities in each. Much of the House attention will shift away from 
lawmaking and towards oversight of the Biden Administration. President Biden’s 
aggressive agenda and initiatives during the 117th Congress yielded a large amount of 
new discretionary authority to the Federal agencies. Now the House will attempt to 
investigate every aspect of the Administration’s usage of funding and implementation of 
programs.  
 
On January 19, Secretary Janet Yellen officially notified Congress that the U.S. has 
reached the debt limit.  Lawmakers still have several months before they must address 
the debt limit because the Treasury can use ‘extraordinary measures’ to ensure the 
government meets its borrowing obligations.  Many hardline Republicans are insisting 
that they will not agree to raise the debt limit without significant spending cuts (even 
though the debt ceiling has been raised in a bipartisan manner under Republican and 
Democratic presidents in the past).  President Joe Biden’s and Democrats’ in Congress 
current position is that they will not negotiate over raising the debt limit.  However, 

103



 3  
  
 

Democrats' tone may be softening a bit.  President Joe Biden and Speaker Kevin 
McCarthy are scheduled to meet on February 1 to discuss raising the debt 
limit.  Democratic Leaders Chuck Schumer and Hakeem Jeffries have both indicated that 
House Republicans need to submit a plan for spending cuts before any negotiations could 
possibly begin, while Senate Republican Leader Mitch McConnell has said that any debt 
limit bill must start in the House.  The potential fight over the debt ceiling will likely be a 
main point of contention in Washington, DC over the next several months.  
 
You can find a calendar with the House and Senate schedules for 2023 here.   
 
Pending Legislation of Interest 
 
H.R.490 — 118th Congress (2023-2024) 
To establish the Federal Infrastructure Bank to facilitate investment in, and the long-
term financing of economically viable U.S. infrastructure projects that provide a public 
benefit. 
Sponsor: Webster, Daniel [Rep.-R-FL-11] 
Introduced: 1/24/2023 
 
S.63 — 118th Congress (2023-2024) 
A bill to adjust the effective date for application of certain amendments made with 
respect to the credit for new clean vehicles. 
Sponsor: Manchin, Joe, III [Sen.-D-WV] 
Introduced: 1/25/2023 
 
H.R.495 — 118th Congress (2023-2024) 
To amend the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 to authorize assignment to 
States of Federal agency environmental review responsibilities. 
Sponsor: Calvert, Ken [Rep.-R-CA-41]  
Introduced: 1/25/2023 
 
H.R.125 — 118th Congress (2023-2024) 
To prohibit the imposition of mask mandates on public transportation. 
Sponsor: Biggs, Andy [Rep.-R-AZ-5]  
Introduced: 1/9/2023 
 
H.R.215 — 118th Congress (2023-2024) 
To provide long-term water supply and regulatory reliability to drought-stricken 
California. 
Sponsor: Valadao, David G. [Rep.-R-CA-22] 
Introduced: 1/9/2023 
 
H.R.327 — 118th Congress (2023-2024) 
To reduce the tax credit for new qualified plug-in electric drive motor vehicles by State 
subsidies for these vehicles. 
Sponsor: Estes, Ron [Rep.-R-KS-4]  
Introduced: 1/12/2023 
 

104

https://www.klgates.com/2023-US-Congressional-Calendar-12-21-2022
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=ee06b6c1e5&e=d2cf47155a
https://secure-web.cisco.com/1qOyg4lBzUXhp5AijrAY2K6aIGsyvU2x3TMxlUjCbBXOAxFO_XbgWsp0h-tQ8aR7bKZ_u9-J9XdFdPsj6YagFp5vD4cNmKuYj-5zoYSWIIy2RqqOXep5o7acu8Tx6rbNuhvdh9aMgqWheyvTw-7XSzC-06BvZfZpd7MkpA8oc8I2SF84v0dmi46hm6cF4-qJm2TftROUaFHNFQ3953b-Yp7RAAHEKz4o2QUPxrzpBIhU6zkdIxwYHHIYk3KaPcW8PDPtg7D_OiwDxQofRVboulQ/https%3A%2F%2Fklgates.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3Dcfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6%26id%3D9b830df7ba%26e%3Dd2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=0d404c407d&e=d2cf47155a
https://secure-web.cisco.com/1PrFbdBOmw-Rj7uHN8N1Ob-Xa30Q5LB2yV2rLh1yM3fpHFDkWky14iHYoW9_1GHHkyqPhrzMl1daXvZcPmDV8xUo-BwDW3C9qjOn7VwIicwSxTPP9mfIA5hCxCi_HVXk88YhUY6-DYvU5YcOnKB_3Q149M8MOTPFybd40bACxLWY8KcoOg6XHikf4ZnkPfqKOYx6_MZ2I5GwJr3cPjKpw83DqF1EqvBHeVY9hXxaqp7T1WLQSmvOgu3rP90K-TFCUE5l46l9xtqu3ANhj7VGeFw/https%3A%2F%2Fklgates.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3Dcfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6%26id%3D5ee7f9da62%26e%3Dd2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=476c7fd13a&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=1b99666c21&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=c6ffb781f1&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=3c3584f6d6&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=b4a9728e25&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=a2c235eb12&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=15f190ba9a&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=2f306da566&e=d2cf47155a


 4  
  
 

Executive Branch 
 
White House Executive Office of the President 
 
The Biden administration released the U.S. National Blueprint for Transportation 
Decarbonization. Developed by the Departments of Energy, Transportation, Housing and 
Urban Development, and the Environmental Protection Agency, the Blueprint is a 
landmark strategy for cutting all greenhouse emissions from the transportation sector by 
2050. It exemplifies the Administration’s whole-of-government approach to addressing 
the climate crisis and meeting President Biden’s goals of securing a 100% clean electrical 
grid by 2035 and reaching net-zero carbon emissions by 2050. The Blueprint is a critical 
step in the ongoing partnership between Department of Energy (DOE), Department of 
Transportation (DOT), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD), and stakeholders and will be followed by more detailed sector-
specific action plans to create a comprehensive suite of strategies to realize an improved 
and sustainable transportation future. 
 
The Biden administration unveiled its fall 2022 regulatory agenda, detailing new proposals 
and timing expectations for long awaited transportation rules.  
 
Department of Transportation (DOT) 
 
The DOT recently released its Research, Development and Technology (RD&T) Strategic 
Plan for Fiscal Years 2022-2026. The new RD&T Plan continues the DOT’s leadership 
role in supporting, fostering, and safeguarding transportation innovation so that it meets 
strategic priorities and objections articulated in the U.S. DOT Strategic Plan. It is also a 
call for innovation, guided by the Innovation Principles that the Department rolled out in 
2022. The RD&T Strategic Plan provides a long-term vision for how research and 
technology deployment can help transform our nation’s transportation system, while 
guiding transportation research, development, and technology deployment activities over 
the next five years.   
 
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
 
The FTA announced a new Notice of Funding Opportunity to help improve transit in areas 
experiencing long-term economic distress. The $20 million in competitive grant funding 
through FTA's Areas of Persistent Poverty Program (AoPP) provides more resources to 
underserved and disadvantaged communities seeking to expand or improve transit 
systems. The AoPP program supports planning and technical studies to improve public 
transportation in areas experiencing long-term economic hardship -- in rural and urban 
communities alike. The AoPP program also funds planning for transit agencies to 
transition to low- and no-emission vehicles and associated charging equipment. Since 
2020, FTA has awarded 70 projects through the program, totaling more than $24.6 
million. 
 

105

https://secure-web.cisco.com/15TggjEWSmaCfyuJH7navRnv2AttG0YkSZ-tQL8mclw3E1jk3f9LAeIn0L2Y7eTSTrLE1iSkW6wgCneID7pKZK_jl2WA7adNZ1JzKxYsBbi3l9vqaSx93KigLCCYcYXCb5IJEUpBEvrcHthZOVp8T2EX1odUW2hQZeHC58Pl-nF4bJ_lCA1ZfG5AHDTf-UNQvNDdlxLeNtNdfQz4tOMF9rxvAuPpHASflemW25w_QvyXkuaPAsRE5fw00M3xP4a2yEihQf0k3qnKbI2hsh78Xiw/https%3A%2F%2Fklgates.us10.list-manage.com%2Ftrack%2Fclick%3Fu%3Dcfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6%26id%3D9acb678c8f%26e%3Dd2cf47155a
https://www.reginfo.gov/public/do/eAgendaMain?operation=OPERATION_GET_AGENCY_RULE_LIST&currentPub=true&agencyCode=&showStage=active&agencyCd=2100&csrf_token=3C48EDCC0A49EFFD82FDD087A6213AE3848FFDBE6C04805455D70CB8F147203C9B2F766B736957C583FC2580BD900D8925B1
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=274a770d9d&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=4d00535874&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=769b7df406&e=d2cf47155a


 5  
  
 

The FTA announced the opportunity to apply for approximately $1.22 billion in competitive 
grants under the FY23 Low or No Emission Grant Program and approximately $469 
million in competitive grants under the FY23 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities Program, 
subject to availability of appropriated funding. Complete proposals must be submitted 
electronically by April 13, 2023. Low or No Emission Grant Program funds will be awarded 
competitively for the purchase or lease of low or no emission vehicles that use advanced 
technologies for transit revenue operations, including related equipment or facilities. 
Buses and Bus Facilities Program funds will be awarded competitively to assist in the 
financing of capital projects to replace, rehabilitate, purchase, or lease buses and related  
equipment, and to rehabilitate, purchase, construct or lease bus-related facilities. 
  
Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
 
The FHWA announced the immediate availability of $29.4 million in quick release 
Emergency Relief funds for use by the California Department of Transportation and four 
U.S. federal land management agencies as a down payment on the repair work needed 
as a result of multiple storms and flooding events that damaged roads, bridges, and 
highways in late December and January. FHWA is providing $10.2 million to Caltrans to 
be distributed to local transportation agencies throughout the State to help repair federal-
aid highways maintained by local agencies. FHWA is also providing a total of $19.2 million 
to the National Park Service, the U.S. Forest Service, the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, 
and the Bureau of Reclamation in order to repair federal land areas damaged by the 
severe storms that led to flooding, landslides, and mudslides in California. 
  
The FHWA announced new resources from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law that will 
create economic opportunities and open the door to building generational wealth for 
disadvantaged entrepreneurs and workers in communities across the country, including: 
new guidance to support state investment in workforce development, training, and 
education; and $10 million to support small businesses owned by minorities, women, and 
other socially and economically disadvantaged individuals. FHWA also announced the 
allocation of $10 million in FY22 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise/Supportive Services 
(DBE/SS) program funding to 47 State DOTs. The infrastructure law provides $50 million 
in funding for the DBE/SS program through 2026. The funding allows participating states 
to provide training and business development services to eligible small businesses to 
improve their ability to compete as prime and subcontractors on federally assisted 
contracts. 
 
The FHWA also announced the first round of Large Bridge Project Grants from the 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law’s competitive Bridge Investment Program. This program is 
one piece of the Administration’s largest dedicated investment in highway bridges since 
the construction of the Interstate highway system, with nearly $40 billion over five years 
that will help repair or rebuild ten of the most economically significant bridges in the 
country along with thousands of bridges across the country.  
 
 
 

106

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=a90bd899fc&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=fd2b0bb24d&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=ee970d086c&e=d2cf47155a
https://highways.dot.gov/newsroom/biden-harris-administration-announces-21-billion-improve-four-nationally-significant


 6  
  
 

Department of Energy (DOE) 
 
The DOE announced $118 million in funding for 17 projects to accelerate the production 
of sustainable biofuels for America’s transportation and manufacturing needs. The 
selected projects, located at universities and private companies, will drive the domestic 
production of biofuels and bioproducts by advancing biorefinery development, from pre-
pilot to demonstration, to create sustainable fuels that reduce emissions associated with 
fossil fuels. The selected projects include pre-pilot, pilot, and demonstration projects that 
will scale-up existing biomass to fuel technologies that will eventually create millions of 
gallons low-carbon fuel annually. Award amounts range from $500,000 to $80 million, 
with most receiving at least $2 million. 
 
The DOE announced $42 million in funding for 12 projects to strengthen the domestic 
supply chain for advanced batteries that power electric vehicles. Projects selected for the 
Electric Vehicles for American Low-Carbon Living (EVs4ALL) program aim to expand 
domestic EV adoption by developing batteries that last longer, charge faster, perform 
efficiently in freezing temperatures and have better overall range retention. The EVs4ALL 
program is managed by DOE’s Advanced Research Projects Agency-Energy (ARPA-E). 
ARPA-E selected 12 teams from universities, national laboratories and the private sector 
to address and remove key technology barriers to EV adoption by developing next- 
generation battery technologies. 
  
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
 
The EPA is finalizing a program to further reduce air pollution, including ozone and 
particulate matter, from heavy-duty engines and vehicles across the United States. The 
final rulemaking promulgates new numeric standards and changes key provisions of the 
existing heavy-duty emission control program, including the test procedures, regulatory 
useful life, emission-related warranty, and other requirements. Together, the provisions 
in the final rule will further reduce the air quality impacts of heavy-duty engines across a 
range of operating conditions and over a longer period of the operational life of heavy-
duty engines. The requirements in the final rule will lower emissions of NOX and other air 
pollutants (particulate matter, hydrocarbons, carbon monoxide, and air toxics) beginning 
no later than model year 2027. This final rule is effective on March 11, 2023. 
 
The EPA announced the availability of $40 million in grants for recycling infrastructure 
projects for Tribes and intertribal consortia. EPA published a Request for Applications to 
solicit interest by Tribes and intertribal consortia for the third funding opportunity in the 
new Solid Waste Infrastructure for Recycling (SWIFR) grant program funded by the 
Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, which invested $375 million in funding for new recycling, 
reuse and waste prevention programs and initiatives, the largest investment in recycling 
infrastructure to EPA in 30 years. This SWIFR grant opportunity is specifically for federally 
recognized Tribes, Alaskan Native Villages, and intertribal consortia. It will fund selected 
projects to create new capacity for Tribes and facilitate greater access to source 
reduction, recycling, and composting opportunities. 
 

107

https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=be5bbc3918&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=b06a2039d1&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=3d9e463528&e=d2cf47155a
https://klgates.us10.list-manage.com/track/click?u=cfce82f960fc6619ca6db3fc6&id=f8323ed5e9&e=d2cf47155a


1 
 

 
 
 
January 30, 2023 
 
TO: Kate Miller, Executive Director 
 Napa Valley Transportation Authority 
 
FR: Steve Wallauch 
 Platinum Advisors 
 
RE: Legislative Update          
 
Legislative Analyst’s Office (LAO’s) Take:  Following the release of the Governor’s 
proposed budget, the LAO released its overview of the proposal.  The LAO will follow-up 
with additional reports providing a more in-depth analysis of various aspects of the 
budget.  These reports will be the basis of the budget subcommittee agendas. 
While the LAO feels the Governor’s proposal is prudent in how it addresses the deficit, 
the LAO expresses concerns that there is a high likelihood that revenues will be lower 
than forecast in the budget proposal, which means the budget problem will grow.  To 
address the likely larger deficit, the LAO recommends that the legislature consider 
reducing more one-time and temporary spending.  The historic surplus from last year was 
allocated to numerous one-time purposes.  The Governor’s budget proposed various 
funding delays and swaps that were outlined in our prior report, but the LAO notes the 
legislature can choose its own list of funding programs to delay, cut, or swap funding 
sources, and urges them to identify more solutions than those proposed by the Governor. 
LAO also notes that the Governor’s budget proposal is balanced for the 2023-24 fiscal 
year, but the spending plan would result in deficits ranging from $4 to $9 billion in future 
fiscal years.  The LAO urges the legislature to make the difficult choices now to avoid out- 
year deficits, or include out-year funding triggers if revenues do not improve. 
 
Additional Budget Items:  The following are additional funding items from the 
Governor’s budget proposal. 

• Local Streets and Roads:  The Governor's Budget proposal estimates an 
increase of 8.6% in gasoline excise tax revenue and 11.1% in diesel excise tax 
revenue from 2022-23 to 2023-24. These revenue streams fund the Highway User 
Tax Account (HUTA) allocations and partially fund the Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) allocations.  In addition, Transportation 
Improvement Fee revenues are estimated to grow by approximately 9.0%.  For the 
2023-24 fiscal year the County of Napa is estimated to receive $8.4 million in HUTA 
and RMRA allocations. 

ATTACHMENT 2 
NVTA AGENDA ITEM 10.2 

February 15, 2023 
 

108



2 

• Safety Grade Separations:  The Governor’s budget also proposes to delay $350
million in general fund revenue for grade separation projects.  The funds would be
removed from the 23-24 fiscal years and instead would be available in the 25-26
fiscal year.  The rationale for this delay is based on the multi-year nature of these
projects which should not significantly impact the delivery of these projects.

• State Excess Sites Development:  The Governor’s Budget proposal includes $75
million to expand affordable housing development and adaptive reuse
opportunities on state excess land sites. This will leverage state land as an asset
to accelerate housing opportunities by offering low-cost, long-term ground leases
in exchange for affordable and mixed-income housing.

SB 1121 Implementation:  The California Transportation Commission (CTC) has 
submitted a budget change letter request for $500,000 to implement SB 1121.  SB 1121 
(Gonzalez) was signed into law last year directing the CTC to develop a needs 
assessment of the cost to operate, maintain, and provide for the future growth and 
resiliency of the state and local transportation system, including an assessment on the 
public transit funding needs. 

In developing the assessment, the CTC must coordinate with the Transportation Agency, 
Caltrans, community-based organizations, environmental justice and equity-based 
organizations, organized labor, the transportation industry, metropolitan planning 
organizations, county transportation commissions, regional transportation planning 
agencies, local governments, and transit operators. The CTC must submit an interim 
assessment to the Legislature by January 1, 2024, and a completed Assessment by 
January 1, 2025, and every five years thereafter. 

While the deficit restricts the ability to fund these studies, the CTC proposes to utilize 
funds from the State Highway Account and the Public Transportation Account to complete 
this task.  The data generated from this assessment will be critical to ongoing efforts to 
secure funding for transit operations and capital.  Consideration of the budget change will 
be heard before the Senate and Assembly Budget Subcommittees sometime this spring. 

Legislation:  The avalanche of new legislation is around the corner on February 17th.  So 
far bills continue to trickle in, with not much to consider at this point.  However, 
Assemblyman Ash Kalra recently introduced AB 96, which is the reintroduction of AB 
2441 (Kalra) that was vetoed last year.  Governor Newsom vetoed AB 2441 due to the 
use of ambiguous terms.   
AB 96 starts where AB 2441 ended by proposing a process that would require a transit 
operator to inform labor representatives of the transit operators’ intent to use autonomous 
vehicle technology.  The notice is just the first step of a negotiating process on addressing 
any impacts the use of autonomous vehicles may have.  Our office will continue to watch 
this bill closely; however, the first hearing is not expected until March at the earliest. 

109


	0000_Agenda
	0000_Glossary of Acronyms Updated 01-2022
	0001_1_Staff Report
	9.1_AB 361 Requirements for Remote Meetings_Cover.ls.SSYW
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.1_AB 361 Requirements for Remote Meetings_Memo.ls.SSYW
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.1_AB 361 ATTCH 1 Resolution 23-03

	0002_1_Draft Minutes
	0003_1_Staff Report
	9.3_FTA Section 5311 & 5311f_Cover_ao-KM changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.3_FTA 5311 and 5311f_Memo_ao-KM changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.3_FTA Section 5311 & 5311F Attch 1 Resolution 23-04

	0004_1_Staff Report
	9.4_TFCA Exp Plan FYE 2024_Cover Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 23-05 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2024 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A).
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	The BAAQMD TFCA policies only allow funds to be retained for two (2) years unless NVTA originally requests additional time or the project(s) is making reasonable progress, in which case, a one (1) year extension is granted.  Bicycle Projects must be c...
	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.4_TFCA Exp Plan FYE 2024_Board Memo-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	That the Napa Valley Transportation Authority (NVTA) Board approve Resolution No. 23-05 (Attachment 1) adopting the Fiscal Year End (FYE) 2024 Transportation Fund for Clean Air (TFCA) Program Manager Expenditure Plan (Attachment 1, Exhibit A).

	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.4_Attach 1 Resolution 23-05 TFCA Exp Plan FYE 2024.docx
	9.4_Attach 1 Resolution 23-05 TFCA Exp Plan FYE 2024
	RESOLUTION No. 23-05
	Passed and adopted this day of February 15, 2023.


	Expend Plan App_ FYE24 template_NAP (002)_updated 2-6-23
	Summary Info
	Addendum



	0005_1_Staff Report
	9.5_RFP Utility Truck_COVER-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.5_RFP Utility Truck_MEMO-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION


	9.5 Attach 1_
	O3_CHEVY PLAT_021523
	P03_CONTINUATION SHEET PAGE 2 OFxx
	Dealership Agreement1
	Stock CF13653 (NCTA - 2023 Silverado 2500 HD Double Cab 2wd with Knapheide Utility Body)



	0006_1_Staff Report
	9.6 Updates to Transit Policies_Cover_RS-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	SUBJECT
	Updates to Vine Transit Policies
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	9.6 Updates to Transit Policies_Memo_RS-KM changes
	Action Requested:  APPROVE
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND


	9.6 Attachment 1 - Revised Transit Policies-KM no changes
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION
	Section 1.1. Overview
	1.1.1 Service Standards
	1.1.2 Performance Measures and Performance Standards
	1.1.3 Operate Safe, Reliable, and Comfortable Service
	1.1.4 Efficiently Use of Resources
	1.1.5 Be a Forward Think Organization Meeting the Needs of an Evolving and Diverse Community

	CHAPTER 2 MAJOR SERVICE CHANGES
	Section 2.1. Overview
	2.1.1 Major Service Change

	CHAPTER 3 PASSENGER FARES, PASSES & TRANSFERS
	Section 3.1. Definitions
	Section 3.2. Fare Policies
	3.2.1 Revenue Collection Principles
	F. Vine Express Fares and Passes

	NOTES
	CHAPTER 4 PASSENGER COMPLAINT & COMMENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES
	Section 4.1. Overview
	4.1.1 Complaints & Comments
	4.1.2 Requests for Reasonable Modification

	CHAPTER 5 ADA PARATRANSIT POLICIES
	Section 5.1. Service Overview
	Section 5.3. Eligibility Determination Process
	Section 5.4. Eligibility Categories
	Section 5.5. Appeals Process
	Section 5.6. Visitors
	Section 5.7. Reservation and Scheduling
	Section 5.8. Hours of Operation and Service Area
	Section 5.9. Fares
	Section 5.10. Mobility Devices
	Section 5.11. Passenger Accompaniment
	Section 5.12. Passenger Assistance
	Section 5.13. No-Shows
	Section 5.14. Pick-Ups
	Section 5.15. Denials and Missed Trips
	Section 5.16. Trip Length
	Section 5.17. Equivalent Service

	CHAPTER 6 CHARTER & SCHOOL BUS
	Section 6.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 7 SHARED VEHICLE PROGRAM
	Section 7.1. Statement of Policy
	7.1.1 Participation
	7.1.2 NVTA Responsibilities

	CHAPTER 8 TAXI SCRIP
	Section 8.1. Statement of Policy
	8.1.1 Participation & Compliance
	8.1.1.1 Users
	8.1.1.2 Agencies
	8.1.1.3 Taxi Company’s

	CHAPTER 9 PASSENGER POLICIES
	Section 9.1. Statement of Policy
	Section 9.2. Passenger Code of Conduct
	9.2.1 Suspendible Offences

	CHAPTER 10 VEHICLE ACCIDENT POLICIES & PROCEDURES
	Section 10.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 11 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR
	Section 11.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 12 SAFETY & SECURITY
	Section 12.1. Statement of Policy

	CHAPTER 13 BUS STOP PLACEMENT
	Section 13.1. Statement of Policy
	A. Local Route
	B. Regional Route
	C. Express Routes
	Section 13.2. Process for Implementing Bus Stop Spacing Recommendations
	B. Stop Elimination Checklist
	C. Stop Consolidation Checklist
	Section 13.3. Adding a Shelter
	Section 13.4. Ongoing Monitoring and Corrective Action

	CHAPTER 14 CONTRACTOR RELATIONS & OVERSIGHT
	Section 14.1. Overview

	CHAPTER 15 TITLE VI
	Section 15.1. Statement of Policy



	0007_1_Staff Report
	10.1 Q2 FY23 Vine Transit Update_Cover_RS-KM change
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	Vine Transit Update
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	FISCAL IMPACT


	10.1 Q2 FY23 Vine Transit Update_Memo_RS-KM changes
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND



	0008_1_Staff Report
	10.2 Legislative Update 01_Cover
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	SUBJECT
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.2 Legislative Update 02_Memo_
	Action Requested:  INFORMATION
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY


	10.2 Legislative Update 03 Federal Report
	10.2 Legislative Update 04 State Report
	SB 1121 Implementation:  The California Transportation Commission (CTC) has submitted a budget change letter request for $500,000 to implement SB 1121.  SB 1121 (Gonzalez) was signed into law last year directing the CTC to develop a needs assessment o...





